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2017 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Human Services Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2215 
1/24/2017 

Job Number 27266 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to hospital discharge policies. 

Minutes: ll Attachments 1-8 

Chair J. Lee: Brought the hearing to order, all members were present. 

Senator Poolman, District 7: (1 :09-2:15) See Attachment #1 for testimony to introduce the 
bill and provided in favor of the bill. 

Josh Askvig, Director, AARP of North Dakota: (3:30-9: 15) See attachment #2 for 
testimony in favor of the bill. 

Senator Anderson: You have this person designated in the chart as the family caregiver but 
yet If they don't execute a release and sign that paperwork, they are still not going to get any 
information, is that correct? 

Josh Askvig: That is correct, they would have to comply with all of the normal federal HIP AA 
regulations and privacy regulations. 

Josh Askvig: (10:03-21 :35) Resumed testimony. 

Mike Chaussee, Advocacy Director, AARP of North Dakota: (23:30-27:50) See 
Attachment #3 for testimony in support of the bill. (27:55-28:40 personal story about 
parents.) 

Dianne Billey, AARP Executive Council: (30:00-34:45) See attachment #4 for testimony 
in support of the bill. (Provided testimony from Barbara Handy-Marchello See attachment 
#5.) 

Ellen Schaffer, Volunteer, AARP: (36:25-38:55) Testified in favor of the bill. I am a retired 
nurse and I have done both hospital and home health nursing. I can testify that yes hospitals 
may already have discharge plans in place. I need more than two hands to account for 
discharge medications that may not be correct when a patient gets home from the hospital. 
In that case the home healthcare nurse then has to do what we call a medication 
reconciliation. We have to contact the doctor to make sure the medication they are taking is 
correct. (Gave an example from family diabetic (37: 15-38:25)). Those opposed to th is bill 



Senate Human Services Committee 
SB 2215 
1/24/17 
Page 2 

will say that they already have discharge plans in place, and if so how does something like · 
this happen to a family. It is why this bill is so important to designate the family caregiver and 
make sure they know what there is to do when they get home. 

Moira Solberg, Director, Volunteer Caregivers for the Elderly: (39:30-43:15) See 
Attachment #6 for testimony in support of the bill. 

Chair J. Lee: I do not think it is entirely fair to suggest that the larger health operations are 
not responsible about their patients. 

Moira Solberg: I am not saying .that but they are so afraid of the liability of it that they are 
not making it always. This doesn't happen every case but if I am in a situation and I have a 
hospitalist and I tell the doctor that he can't hear the doctor doesn't like me anymore. I am 
just a layperson in their eyes. It is hard sometimes because they can shut the caregiver down. 

Senator Anderson: How do you think this bill solves the problem you just described? 

Moira Solberg: It does to a degree that now I have some importance, and I'm the one that 
is their link between them going home and the one who is probably going to take them to 
their follow-up visit. I am the one transporting them. This would at least give me a legitimacy. 

Vice Chair Larsen: Is there only one caregiver designated to the hospital or can there be 
multiple caregivers per patient? 

Moira Solberg: In our situation, I am the director of the program but I may have a volunteer 
who is the one for a particular person. Usually that person has friended the family. Children 
will call the one person. Generally, it is just one person. 99% of the time it's not about snoopy 
kids, it's about concerned kids. I always encourage the children to call the nurses station. I 
am not a medical person. As a volunteer, I'm not going to give them medical instruction. 

Chair J. Lee: Even the nurses station shouldn't be giving them information if the patient 
does not want that. Asked for testimony in opposition. 

Jerry Juenera, President, North Dakota Hospital Association: (48:00-52:45) See 
Attachment #7 for testimony in opposition to the bill. 

Chair J. Lee: Recognizing the necessity of the HIPAA release, why couldn't that be on the 
same form as the one where someone is designated their caregiver would be. Doesn't seem 
that it is duplicative if there is going to be HIPAA at the same time. 

Jerry Juenera: We could create a form that would include all of that. 

Chair J. Lee: No further testimony was present and closed the hearing on SB 2215. 

Attachment #8(online newspaper article) provided after the hearing. 

• 

• 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A bill relating to hospital discharge policies. 

Minutes: No Attachments 

Chair J. Lee: Brought the meeting to order and opened SB 2215 for committee discussion. 

(1:15) Senator Anderson: I don't like adding a bunch more things to what the hospitals are 
required to do on discharge. Most of the things that we heard about are misinformation or 
they were not told when they should have been told. I'm not sure this solves those issues. 
For Example, someone talks about they did not know the side effects of morphine - the 
doctor should have told them that and so should the pharmacist when they got that dispensed 
to them. Apparently they didn't catch it. You usually get a booklet with instructions when you 
go in for a procedure and if you don't read it you might not know about what might happen 
afterward . Every hospital right now criteria goes out discharge, and comes back, to take care 
of them for free. I'm not crazy about adding more regulations to that. 

Vice Chair Larsen: is this the disconnect though that when the caregiver is trying to help out 
the person and then they go back or call the doctor with a question and they are told they are 
not the caregiver and they can't give them information. Or, you are not the person who is the 
designated one. 

Senator Anderson: I asked that question and they have to have the form filled out regardless 
of whether they are the designated caregiver or not. So if the patient fills out the form that 
says they have permission it doesn't make any difference whether you are the designated 
caregiver or not. 

Senator Clemens: What is AARP's interest in this? They seem like they're on a mission to 
get this accomplished. 

Chair J. Lee: Because they are representing people who are caregivers all over the state in 
large numbers. There are a ton of uncompensated caregivers in the state. And if we have 
not been in that situation we will be someday. Their point is that there are folks who are 
struggling to keep up and in a lot of cases it is an older spouse or it might be an adult child 
that is balancing a lot of things. I am sympathetic to the situation but I don't know if all of them 
are doing the discharge reporting as consistently as some. There is no way to know that. 
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Senator Kreun: A caregiver does not mean that if they are the executor of the state and it 
does not mean they are the healthcare director. So, can that caregiver even get the 
information when they are picking up that individual if they have not contact. 

Chair J. Lee: They can, under this bill, if they are designated as the caregiver, but the patient 
the one to determine whether that access is given. 

Senator Kreun: What qualifications does this caregiver have? 

Chair J. Lee: They don't even have to be. It could be anybody but the person has to be 
designating that individual. 

Senator Kreun: Who's to say that that individual is going to understand anything that 
hospital tells them? There is no guarantee that person can go there and understand what 
they are doing so my point then is, is this bill applicable. There's no guarantee with or without 
this bill. 

(7:05) Senator Anderson: I don't mean to denigrate the work or the duty of the 
uncompensated caregiver; my question is if a bill like this really helps the situation any. The 
hospital gives me all the info I need on discharge. I am not sure they are going to give me 
any more information because we pass this bill. We heard the one instance where the old 
guy designated his wife as the person they should contact. How does that help if the wife 
can't remember? 

V-Chair Larsen: I think the caregivers are thinking that the bill will give them authority or 
recognition that is who they are. 

Senator Heckaman: I think it is going to be important in lots of communities' given the fact 
that our population is so mobile now and we don't live like we used to. There are many people 
in my community that have no family in the area and they don't want to move to a larger 
community where that family is. So as a result, neighbor takes care of neighbor and I think 
that is where this will be beneficial. That neighbor can go to the hospital and they can be the 
designated caregiver and they can understand those directions. A lady in my community tried 
to get out of the hospital and being on so many meds that she couldn't keep things straight 
and she needed someone to help since she had no family around. This has some benefit in 
those cases. (Gave a personal experience where she could not get information for her 
husband even though she is the primary policy holder and had to sign a document first.) This 
makes it clear that there are many people in North Dakota that don't have an opportunity to 
have someone already signed on. 

Senator Anderson: On the story you just told, if that hospital didn't have you listed then they 
are not going to tell you that stuff. 

Senator Heckaman: This was the insurance company. On my policy, it lists my name as 
primary and he is on there as my spouse. 

Senator Kreun: I have had the health directive of a friend of mine as well as the power of 
attorney and if you don't have those things in place prior to, whether you are a caregiver or 
not, you are not going to get the information. Unless you have signed documents, you are 
not going to get it. I couldn't even get meds for my wife. They didn't care. You've got to do 
that stuff ahead of time. The people we're talking about won't have that done ahead of time. 
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Vice Chair Larsen: Moved a Do Pass. 

Senator Heckaman: Seconded. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 3 nays, 0 absent. 

Motion carried. 

Senator Larsen will carry the bill. 
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D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to hospital discharge policies. 

Minutes: 1,2, 3,3A,4,5,6 

Chairman Weisz called the committee to order and opened the hearing on SB 2215. 

Nicole Poolman appeared in support. (Attachment 1) (:01 :32-:02:22) This weekend my 
grandfather was discharged from the hospital with a chest tube that has to be drained every 
other day. There is no one there to do this since both of my grandparents are in their 90s. 
Now my father has to drive an hour each way every other day to provide this care. 

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? 

Representative Schneider: think that we heard that this was already being done when it 
was heard in the house. 

N. Poolman: I have heard that too, but 1 in 3 still are not getting the training they need. 

Representative Westlind: What kind of liability issues did you address? 

N. Poolman: If the hospital trains the caregiver and the care giver doesn't do it correctly, 
the hospital cannot be held liable. 

Representative D. Anderson: Are the uncompensated caregivers going to have liability 
issues then? 

N. Poolman: I don't know. 

Representative Damschen: Did you ever contact the hospital to see why? 

N. Poolman: Yes, and the doctor said that he should have never have been sent home 
with the tube in place with no one to care for it. 
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Representative Westlind: We are already doing this in the hospital in our community, and to 
me, this is duplication and would just add more paperwork. 

N. Poelman: I don't know if they have policies in place. I know that the doctor thought that 
someone administratively was doing this and offering a consultation, and the consultation did 
not occur. 

Representative McWilliams: If this bill was enacted, was it possible that this could have 
happened anyway? 

N. Poelman: I think any policy could be missed or ignored. 

Chairman Weisz: Further questions from the committee? Further testimony in support of 
SB 2215? 

Josh Askvig, State Director of AARP, appeared in support. (Attachment 2) (:08:03-28:54) 

Chairman Weisz: (:29:00) Are there any questions from the committee? 

Representative Porter: Inside of your survey did you ask for the names of facilities that are 
not doing this? 

J. Askvig: I don 't think that we did that. The people that are following me in testifying will 
give you more examples. 

Representative McWilliams: For hospitals that are currently doing this, what does this bill 
do? 

J. Askvig : If they are already doing it, there should not be many changes at all. We are just 
trying to close the loop holes. 

Representative Porter: Based on the response to Representative McWilliams, how do you 
see this bill different than the one we had in the house as HB 1039? 

J. Askvig: HB 1039 still leaves the loop holes in place. We are trying to close the loop holes. 

Representative Skroch: Why are we seeing two bills that are almost the same? 

J. Askvig: We did not like HB 1039 and urged you to vote against it because of the loop 
holes that were left in it. HB 1039 does not offer the liability protection for the hospitals. 

Representative Skroch: In your survey you list all kinds of concerns of caregivers? How 
does this bill make that better? 

J. Askvig: It is to make you aware that they are working hard and do experience stress and 
financial strain . I have a family caregiver that I know of in ND that was given discharge 
instructions to care for after a surgery. It was never clearly stipulated what materials she was 
to use and how that bandage should be replaced to prevent infections, so she went out and 
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bought a lot of materials that was opened and about to use, and then found out she had a 
nurse friend that lived next door. Her nurse friend told her not to use those materials, 
because they could actually end up creating or increasing infection . Therefore, she had to 
buy new materials. 

Representative McWilliams: Why include $860 million of uncompensated caregivers? 

J. Askvig : That is what it would cost the state for someone to be paid to do whatever these 
caregivers are doing. 

Representative McWilliams: I am not sure how you quantify the care that families should be 
doing this. Parents give a million dollars of care to children, and they are not compensated 
either. It is just something they do as parents. 

J. Askvig : That is what we know based off of our research. There are situations where family 
members don't do it. 

Representative Damschen: This still requires the volunteers. I wonder if the people that 
were surveyed realized that they were not automatically going to get a caregiver? 

J . Askvig : If you are making an amendment to pay every caregiver, we would support it for 
sure, but I don't think you are doing that. This is about the ones that are helping their loved 
ones at home and that they receive the kind of training they need to receive to be able to do 
this correctly. 

Representative Damschen: The people that contacted me seemed to understand that this 
bill would automatically give a caregiver for those who needed one. We really are not doing 
anything except putting into code something we are already doing. 

J. Askvig: I agree with you on everything except the last thing you said . There are loop holes 
that this bill addresses. 

Representative P. Anderson: Is there any information about readmission to the hospitals for 
more training? 

J. Askvig : There is. I don't have the figures in front of me in terms of readmission . One of 
the goals is to lower readmissions. 

Representative Schneider: I had a couple of caregivers that said they had not been given 
the instructions they needed, so they took their loved one back to the emergency room for 
more training or help, but I suppose that would not be considered a readmission to the 
hospital. 

J . Askvig : I would bet that it wasn't necessarily an expense for the patient or hospital either. 

Dianne Billey, volunteer on the AARP Executive Council, appeared in support. (Attachment 
3) (:46:38-:51 :53) 
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Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions? 

Chairman Weisz: Is there further testimony in support of SB 2215? 

Ellen Schafer, volunteer for AARP, appeared in support. (Attachment 4) (:52:07-:54:36) 

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? 

Chairman Weisz: Is there further testimony in support of SB 2215? 

Chairman Weisz: Is there any support in opposition to SB 2215? 

Jerry Jurena, Pres. of the ND Hospital Association, appeared in opposition. (Attachment 5) 
(:55:57-1 :02:00) Over the last week or so I have been approached on several occasions, 
and I do not hate caregivers! I am not anti AARP. However, why do we need a state law to 
address something that is already addressed by the federal and accreditation guidelines? 

Representative Damschen: We have heard some issues where things were done or not 
done by caregivers. Does this bill address all of that? 

J. Jurena: From what I see, we are going to continue doing what we are already doing. We 
are providing education to the caregiver and the patient when they leave the hospital. I see 
nothing in the bill that is going to insure the understanding of the patient on the other side. 

Representative Devlin: Do you think the amendments made the bill better, or it had no 
impact? 

J. Jurena: No, I don't see anything that will make any difference. I asked 3 lawyers, and 
they said there is nothing in this law that will stop them from being sued. 

Representative McWilliams: Does this bill do anything above and beyond what is already 
required in Medicare and Medicaid? 

J. Jurena: From my prospective, no. 

Representative Schneider: What is being proposed in the amendment does give you a clear 
definition of the liability. 

J. Jureau: You can be sued by anyone for anything. I don't think this would help you not be 
held liable. 

Representative Schneider: That would definitely not be my opinion. If you had to suggest 
some other language, what would it be? 

J. Jureau: I see those amendments, but I can 't answer what the lawyers would tell us one 
way or another. Being sued several times and held liable for cases that we thought there 
was no way we would be held liable, I don't see that language helping. 
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Dan Hannaher, Health Policy Consortium, appeared in opposition. I am going to introduce 
someone, but I want to say something before I do that. We are trying to make sure that the 
people are assigned a case manager before they are taken out of the hospital. I am 
introducing Dr. Chris Meeker. (1 :08:08:-1:10:56) 

Dr. Chris Meeker, Chief Medical Officer at Sanford Health, Bismarck, appeared in opposition. 
(Attachment 6) (1 :11 :16-1 :14:07) I also brought the policies for discharge from Sanford 
Health. It is a 5-page document that I can give out copies if anyone would like to see it. One 
point in the policy is that the patient has the right to be active and participate in the 
development of their discharge plan of care. Upon admission, the nurse assesses the patient 
for the following and documents on the Admission Navigator: prior living situation, risk factors 
related to past medical history, prior level of functioning, home and family, preference for 
religion, nutrition, concerns or fears related to present admission, abuse and/or neglect, 
financial concerns, advance directive, and high risk assessment. The case manager/social 
worker reviews the patient's prior living situation, availability of caregivers, prior use of 
adaptive equipment, insurance source, current services or anticipated discharge services, 
and the patient and family goals for discharge. As you can see, the bill in questions does not 
add much to what we already have in place. 

Chairman Weisz: Are there any questions from the committee? 

Representative Schneider: You were here when the AARP testified, and I am wondering if 
you disagree with the gaps that were noted? 

Dr. Meeker: I don't disagree with them, but I don't think adding this to ND Century Code is 
going to change anything. 

Representative Schneider: I am seeing several things that you are not doing now. 

Dr. Meeker: We are going to do everything we can to make sure that you are able to go 
home and not have to be readmitted to the hospital. 

Representative Schneider: I don't understand why you are in opposition to this then. We 
often have duplication in federal and state guidelines, and I don't understand why you are 
against closing those gaps. 

Dr. Meeker: I just don't think that making it a law will change poor medical care, and that is 
really what those gaps are. This doesn't exclude observation patients from inpatient patients. 

Representative Schneider: One of these things this would add to this is huge. One of the 
amendments that you don't have right now is protection from liability. 

Dr. Meeker: I am not aware of any liability protection. Right now our attorneys said that our 
liability would be covered with our regular liability insurance. 

Representative Schneider: Thank you. 
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Representative McWilliams: With the Medicaid and Medicare policies that are in place, is 
there some kind of oversight to whether the hospitals are doing this? 

Dr. Meeker: There are penalties for bad discharge policies. There are a number of ways 
CMS can penalize you for this. 

Representative Damschen: Back to Sen. Poolman's example, how would your discharge 
policy have addressed that? 

Dr. Meeker: I do not have enough information about that situation, but we would do as much 
as we can to make sure the caregivers have as much training as they can have. 

Representative Skroch: In your regulations you have that hospitals consider the availability 
and capability of the caregiver to provide home care. How would hospitals be able to insure 
that someone would be able to do appropriate care of the patients? 

Dr. Meeker: You need to assess the educational level of the people you are training. 

Representative Skroch: Have you ever had any legal action because of things that did or 
didn't happen at home? 

Dr. Meeker: I can honestly say I have never seen that. 

Representative McWilliams: When a hospital is using telehealth , would having the name of 
the caregiver in their medical record be beneficial to somebody on the other end of telecare 
helping that patient? 

Dr. Meeker: ND has not gotten to that level yet. We don't have a secure way of getting 
information out there on a secure server. 

Representative McWilliams: If the home caregiver has a problem that they think there is an 
infection starting, can they call the hospital and talk to someone that could help them even if 
their name is not on the records? 

Dr. Meeker: Yes, they would be given information to assist them in the care of the situation. 
That would not be a HIPPA violation, because you are not giving personal information. 

Representative P. Anderson: In Minnesota they passed this legislation. Are you aware of 
the difference between this bill and what Minnesota has? Another question was asked, but 
could not hear because her microphone was not on. 

J. Askvig, State Director of AARP, appeared. I am aware of the differences. Their legislation 
is more stringent in terms of timelines and other things that have been criticized about it. 
Hospital support has varied widely across the country in terms of how much opposition, to 
neutral, to support of a version of this bill. In the interim we looked at 25 versions that had 
passed, and this was the version that at that point the hospitals said would probably fit best 
for ND. The version in front of you isn't our preferred version, but we are happy to 
accommodate it just as we said. Chairman Weisz closed the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to hospital discharge policies. 

Minutes: 1, 2 

Chairman Weisz called the committee to order and opened the discussion on SB 2215. This 
is the same bill that we had in the House which was killed in the Senate a couple of days 
ago. 

Representative P. Anderson: You heard me talk about Minnesota. My daughter has been a 
hospitalist in Minnesota for 9 years. She said their CARE bill went into effect January 1, 
2017, and she said it hasn't affected their discharge policy at all. They were testifying that it 
was a non-event. I have to vote for this bill based upon constituent requests. 

Representative McWilliams: I move for a do not pass on SB 2215. 

Representative Skroch: Second. 

Representative Westlind: I have a sheet from the hospital in Cando, and they start 
immediately getting all the information they need and they are trained in the hospital. These 
procedures that are in 2215 are already in place in our hospital. I would have to vote for a 
do not pass. 

Chairman Weisz: I am handing out a copy of the Sanford discharge policy that we had 
requested before. (Attachment 1) 

Representative Westlind: I have a copy of our discharge plan from our hospital. (Attachment 
2) 

Vice Chairman Rohr: Mr. Chairman, are you struggling with this bill? 

Chairman Weisz: I am disappointed that the Senate killed the House one. 



House Human Services Committee 
SB 2215 
3/21/17 
Page 2 

Vice Chairman Rohr: I would have trouble supporting this as well . I worked as an 
administrator, and we did this. We developed policies and implemented them, etc. 

Representative Skroch: I fear for people that do things wrong and then come back and say 
that it was the hospital's fault for lawsuits. 

Vice Chairman Rohr: The hospitals are incentivized to make sure that these people are given 
appropriate discharge instructions, because they won't be paid by Medicare if they 
continually show that readmission rates are elevated for certain diagnoses. 

Representative Skroch: Anything that is trying to be accomplished in this bill can already be 
done. I honestly don't see a need. 

A roll call vote was taken. 12 Yeas, 1 Nay, 1 Absent. 

Representative Westlind will carry the bill. 
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SB 2215 
Testimony to Senate Human Services 

Madam chair and members of the committee, my name is Nicole 
Poolman, state senator from District 7 representing Bismarck 
and Lincoln. SB 2215 was put forward by the interim Human 
Services committee after studying caregivers in North Dakota. It 
encourages hospitals to provide adequate training for family 
caregivers before a patient leaves the hospital. 

The bill ensures that hospitals will: 
*Ask patients if they want to appoint a family caregiver 
*Record the family caregiver in the medical record 
*Notify the family caregiver when the patient is to be 
discharged from the hospital 
*Show the family caregiver how to provide medical tasks 
they'll be asked to provide at home 

With proper training, family members can provide the 
appropriate level of care to keep a patient at home. With over 
62,000 caregivers in North Dakota providing over 58 million 
hours of unpaid care annually, this not only provides a safe 
environment for the patient, it makes a difference to North 
Dakota's bottom line. 
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Chair Lee, members of the Senate Human Services Committee, I am Josh Askvig, 
State Director for AARP North Dakota. Thank you for the opportunity to appear 
before you today to share AARP's thoughts on how to improve hospital to home 
transitions. We stand in support of SB 2215 

You heard earlier today about AARP's founder, Dr. Ethel Percy Andrus, the retired 
teacher turned advocate. We'd like reiterate her commitment to the health and 
financial security of all Americans, especially the 50+. Her spirit is in all of us as we 
continue the work of AARP. Again, we are a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization with 
a current membership in North Dakota of more than 87,000. Nationwide, we have 
nearly 38 million members. We hear from our members every day - about their 
dreams to live longer, healthier and fulfilled lives. 

AARP has been raising the profile of family caregivers in North Dakota and across 
the country. Through our research we know that there are approximately 62, 100 
individual caregivers in North Dakota that provide over 58 million hours of 
uncompensated care valued at over $860 million. In recent years, the role of 
family caregivers has greatly expanded from coordinating and providing personal 
care and household chores to include medical or nursing tasks such as wound care 
and injections. For the individuals doing this work in North Dakota it is a labor of 
love, but it comes with stress, burnout and often times at a cost to their own health 
and financial stability. Providing support for these caregivers is critical toward 
ensuring that individuals can safely stay in their homes as they age. Our loved ones 
can remain independent at home with caregiver support. 

We know that family members have been taking care of each other forever, but we 
also know how we live today is dramatically different than it was even 20 years ago. 
We're living longer - and because of that our health care needs are changing. 
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Health care issues can be difficult physically and emotionally on both the patient and 
the caregiver. Plus, understanding medication and therapy is complex. 

That is why AARP began exploring ways to assist these family caregivers to best 
support them. AARP came up with a policy proposal that asks hospitals to do a few 
things to make the transition of patients, and the people THEY identify as the person 
who will be taking care of them at home, a little easier. 
Let me walk you through the bill: 

Page 1, Lines 6-16- this part of the bill provides definitions to ensure clarity in the 
remainder of the bill. Specifically, it outlines what constitutes an aftercare task, most 
importantly including those complex medical or nursing tasks outlined above. Also, it 
provides a definition of discharge to clearly stipulate when the aftercare instructions 
would be provided . Last, it provides a clear definition of who is considered a 
caregiver for the purposes of the bill. 

Page 1, Lines 17-24 AND Page 2, lines 1-11- This is the meat of the bill. This part of 
the bill ensures: 

1. Hospitals ask patients if they would like to designate someone as an 
"uncompensated caregiver" (subsection "b.") - we believe most often that is a 
family member which is why AARP refers to these individuals as family 
caregivers most often. However, as stated in the definition it does NOT 
require them to be a family member, an important distinction we will discuss 
later in how the CARE Act differs from the rules hospitals already follow. 

2. If, and only if, the patient has designated a caregiver, it requires that the 
family caregiver be documented as part of the official medical record 
(subsection "c. "). This is an important piece of the bill. It recognizes the 
caregiver as an important component of keeping the patient safe and ability to 
heal when they leave the hospital. It also ensures the hospital knows who will 
be providing care when the patient leaves the hospital. Also, it ensures that 
the patient's caregiver is recognized in the medical record by the hospital to 
share at the most critical times for the patient. A quick note, this bill does 
nothing to change federal privacy rights or HIPPA regulations. These 
regulations and information release proceedures would all still need to be met 
and followed. 

3. Because we've identified the importance of the role of the caregiver, the bill 
also ensures hospitals to let the family caregiver know when the patient is to 
be discharged - whether the patient is going home or being transferred to 
another facility (subsection "d."). Again, this bill does nothing to change 
federal privacy rights or HIPPA regulations. They would all still need to be met 
and followed. 
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4. Then, and this is really the key piece of the legislation - the piece the family 
caregivers continue to ask for ... the bill asks hospitals to show the caregiver 
how to do what he or she is being asked to do (subsections "e." and "f."). 
Things like how to properly measure and distribute medicine - sometimes 
even giving shots, how to change bandages and clean wounds, and there's 
often some kind of equipment - like slings, braces or meters - they should be 
taught how to use them - how to take them on and off, how to read them and 
interpret them. 

5. The last part just ensures that the discharge instructions get recorded in the 
medical chart (subsection "g."). 

Page 2, Lines 7-11 - This part of the bill ensures that hospitals use national 
standards and federal regulations. 

Page 2, Lines 12-22 - This piece of the bill provides some relief for hospitals to 
address concerns they raised through ongoing discussions. Specifically: 

1. Ensures that legal healthcare directives are followed. 
2. Ensures that hospitals can discharge patients in a timely manner. This section 

specifically was written to address concerns we heard about how the CARE 
Act would cause delays in discharge proceedings. You will likely hear they 
feel it conflicts with subsection "f." above. Subsection "f." says they have to 
provide an "opportunity" for instruction before discharge. 

3. This part makes it clear that hospitals don't have to chase down a caregiver if 
a patient declines to designate one. 

4. Here the bill addresses a major hospital concern we heard as we discussed 
this bill, the question of liability. This section clearly states that a hospital 
cannot be held liable for mistakes made by a caregiver in home setting, as 
long as they follow the provisions of the statute. 

It is worth noting that this bill has changed dramatically from the initial bill discussed 
in the 2015 session due to significant and appreciated input from North Dakota 
hospitals. We were thankful for the opportunity to work with them and are 
disappointed that despite all of the adjustments they have indicated that they still 
want to stand in the way of supporting North Dakota family caregivers. 

We know from discussions and previous testimony that hospitals argue that they 
already do much of what the bill is asking or that the requirements in the bill are 
duplicative of the Medicare and Medicaid Cost of Participation or the Joint 
Commission of Hospital Accreditation standards. So before I turn the podium over to 
Mike Chaussee from our office to talk about the data and support from North 
Dakotan caregivers, let me walk you through where SB2215 will close loopholes in 
the existing federal rules or standards. 



Specifically, AARP evaluated the Medicaid and Medicare rules and the Joint 
Commission standards. Our experts also looked into the laws and regulations that 
govern hospitals in North Dakota. Attached to your testimony is a chart outlining how 
the CARE Act differentiates from current regulations and standards. 

As you can see from the attachment, there are loopholes that exist in the current 
rules. The CARE Act simply looks to close them to ensure that caregivers get the 
information and instruction they need. You may here about these requirements 
being stringent or causing the need for additional staff requirements. We would note 
that the bill is silent on how the instruction or demonstration would need to be 
provided. In fact, when we talk about instruction for caregivers, we leave options 
open for hospitals. They can determine the best way to teach the family caregivers -
they could even produce videos and show them at the hospital or provide links to 
videos family caregivers can watch when they leave. It also may be an opportunity 
for the use of telehealth . 

My final point before I give way Mike. I anticipate you will hear continued concerns 
about liability. As I mentioned this is addressed in the bill. The language on page 2, 
lines 20-22 . This language was provided during the discussions by the hospitals. If 
they have suggestions to improve it we would welcome them. 

Chair Lee, committee members, thank you for your time. I'd be happy to try to 
answer any questions you might have. Otherwise, I will turn it over to Mike 
Chaussee, as well as a couple of people ready to testify and share their caregiving 
stories. 



NORTH DAKOTA CARE ACT COMPARISON TO STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS 

All of these regulations are found in North Dakota Century Code and Administrative Rules. They are all part of Chapter 33-07-01.1 North Dakota 

Licensing Rules for Hospitals. Access to Regulations is through North Dakota Department of Health; Health Facilities: 

http://www.ndhealth.gov/hf/North Dakota Hospitals Critical access.htm. Upon entering the website navigate to the appropriate regulation 

through the menu links. 

NORTH DAKOTA ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION JOINT COMMISSION ON ACCREDITATION 
CARE Act REGULATIONS (CoPs} OF HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

Identification of No requirement for identification of t he Hospitals and state hospital The Joint Commission's standards for 
Family Caregiver and family caregiver or including the associations may claim that they medical record keeping require information 
Including him/her in information in the patient record currently perform the tasks outlined in identifying the patient and "the name of 
Patient Record the CARE Act (i.e., identification of the any legally authorized representative." 

33-07-01.1-20. Medical records services. caregiver in the medical record, There is no mention of nor any 

notifying the caregiver of a transfer or 
requirement of the need to elicit and 

discharge, and providing instructions 
document the identification of the patient's 

for the caregiver to perform post-
caregiver. 

discharge medical tasks) . 

While the CoPs include requirements 

for patient's rights and discharge 
planning, the federal regulations and 
State Operations Manual that 

provides interpretive guidelines of the 

regulations do not include the specific 

provisions of the CARE Act. 

While the CoPs require the hospital to 
notify a family member or 
representative of the patient's 
admission into a hospital, the CoPs do 
not require the hospital to provide the 
patient an opportunity to designate a 
caregiver or for the information to be 
added to the patient's medical record. 



CARE Act 

Notification of 
Caregiver if Patient is 
Being Discharged or 
Transferred 

Provide Training of 
Any After Care Tasks 
Caregiver Will Need 

to Perform 

NORTH DAKOTA ADMINISTRATIVE 

REGULATIONS 

Although a specific requirement to notify 
the caregiver is not included, discharge 
planning must be consistent with patient 
and family needs, inferring family 
involvement. In addition, the family 
receives instruction upon discharge (see 
below). This would imply some sort of 
notification of the patient's pending 
discharge or transfer. 

33-07-01.1-09. Governing body 

Instructions to family members upon 
discharge are required. Training on after 
care tasks may be implied but not 
specified. 

CON S OF PARTICIPATION 
(CoPs) 

It cannot be assumed that the person 
identified as a family member or legal 
representative for the purpose of 
admission notification is the patient's 
caregiver. Further, the reference to a 
family member or legal representative 
is not inclusive of all individuals the 
patient may want to identify as a 
caregiver. The CARE Act simply 
requires the hospital to ask the 
patient or the patient's representative 
ifs/he would like to designate a 
caregiver. 

The CoPs requires that "as needed, 

the patient and family members or 

interested persons must be counseled 

to prepare them for post-hospital 
care . 

While the CoPs include language for 

hospitals to provide education and 

training to caregivers as part of the 

discharge planning process, the 

regulation includes a loophole with 

the language "as needed". 

This language allows for the hospital 

to determine when education and 

training will be provided to 

caregivers, which allows them the 

option to opt out from providing 

education and training to caregivers. 

JOINT COMMISSION ON ACCREDI 
OF HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

While the Joint Commission's standards 
state that the patient's family should 
participate in the patient's discharge or 
transfer, the standards do not specify the 
role of the patient's caregiver. 
The Joint Commission's standards state 
that when the family is involved in decision 
making or in ongoing care, they must be 
included in the discharge process. 
However, the Joint Commission's standards 
do not recognize that the patient's primary 
caregiver may not be a family member. 

The Joint Commission's standards do not 
require actual instruction of the caregiver 
in the continuing care needed. 

Before the hospital discharges or transfers 

a patient, it must inform and educate the 
patient about the type of post-discharge 
care a patient is going to need. 

Before the patient is discharged, the 
hospital informs the patient, and also the 
patient's family when it is involved in 
decision making or ongoing care, of the 
kinds of continuing care, treatment, and 
services the patient will need. 

However, this is clearly not the same as 
providing instruction or training to the 
patient's family. And furthermore, the 
patient's family may or may not include the 
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The CARE Act simply closes the 

loophole and requires that all 

caregivers be trained to perform the 

post-discharge tasks necessary to keep 

the patient safe. 

ml NT COMMISSION ON ACCREDl:t'.AT'ION 
OF HEAtTFHCARE ORGANIZAT>IONS 

individual designated as the patient's 
caregiver. There is no specific mention of 
providing training to caregivers. 
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Chairman Lee, members of the Senate Human Services Committee, I am Mike Chaussee, 

Advocacy Director for AARP North Dakota. Thank you for the opportunity to appear before 

you today to share more about AARP's thoughts on how to improve hospital to home 

transitions . 

AARP conducted a telephone survey of about 1,000 North Dakota residents 45-years-old 

and older in November and December. I'd like to focus my testimony on some of the 

findings from that survey . 

First, we discovered that the specific requirements found in the CARE Act (SB 2215) are 

important to North Dakotans. Of the people surveyed, more than 80-percent say they 

support requiring hospitals to record caregiver information when patients are admitted to the 

hospital. The exact figures can be found on the bar graph near the top of page one. The 

percentages of support increased when we asked respondents about the other 

requirements of the bill. Ninety-percent say they support requiring hospitals to keep 

caregivers informed of major decisions. And 93-percent say they support requiring hospitals 

to demonstrate medical tasks to family caregivers. 

It's interesting to note that the numbers are fairly consistent among party affiliation. The 

percentages by are found in the middle section of the front page of the document provided. 

We learned a couple of other things from the survey. We learned that almost half of the 

people surveyed are either currently acting as a family caregiver or have in the past (47%). 

Those who serve as family caregivers drive their loved ones to appointments (87%), help 

them with meals (79% ), and perform medical tasks as well. Nearly two-thirds say they 



oversee medical management (64%) and more than six in ten say they are responsible for. , 

other medical or nursing tasks (61 % ). 

We also asked them how often they perform those medical or nursing tasks. Over half say 

they do it daily (51 % ) and another 20-percent say they do it weekly. So, more than seven in 

10 people perform a medical or nursing task once a week. It's easy to see then why it's so 

important for AARP to attempt to get them the instruction and demonstration necessary to 

perform those tasks. 

The survey takers think it's important too. When we asked respondents if they think it would 

be important for them to receive instruction on medical tasks for their loved ones if they were 

asked to care for them - 90-percent said it would be extremely or very important. 

Now, the last statistic we would like to share is how well hospitals are doing in preparing 

them for the tasks they'll be asked to perform. We asked current and former caregivers if 

they were provided with instruction or demonstration of any medical tasks that they'd be 

asked to perform upon discharge. More than 30-percent said, "No." 

Even if we consider that percentage an improvement since the NDSU Extension Service 

reported about 50-percent of caregivers were getting that information when it conducted a 

non-scientific survey two years ago - Even if - nearly one in three people in the AARP study 

still say they received no instruction. 

Statistics can be informative, but they rarely tell the whole story. That's why we asked a 

member of our executive council to say a few words. Her name is Dianne Billey and she 

drove here from Ellendale, North Dakota. 

Before I turn it over to her, do you have any questions? The sheets provided summarize 

most of the relevant information from the survey. 

Thank you. 

• 
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~6 AARP North Dakota Caregiving Survey: 
• rwhelming Support for the CARE Act 
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Research 

More than 80 percent of North Dakota likely voters age 45 and older support the measures in The 
Caregiver Advise, Record, and Enable (CARE) Act. 

Support for Proposals to Help Family Caregivers When Loved Ones 
Go into Hospitals Among North Dakota Likely Voters Age 45+ 

(n=877) 
Lay caregivers provide help when their 
loved ones go into the hospital and as 
they transition home. The bill features 
important provisions that 
require hospitals to prepare family 
caregivers for the difficult job ahead. 

Support for the three CARE Act 
measures asked about in this survey -
recording the name of the 
~aregiver, keeping caregivers informed wnd demonstrating 

medical tasks to caregivers -
reaches well over the majority for likely 
voters in North Dakota regardless of 
. political party. 

100% 

80% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

0% 

• Support Neither support/oppose/unsure 

Requiring hospitals to 
record caregiver 
information upon 

admission 

90% 

4% 5% 

Requiring hospitals to 
keep caregivers informed 

of major decisions 

• Oppose 

93% 

3% 4% 

Requiring hospitals to 
demonstrate medical 
tasks to caregivers 

Likely Voters Republicans Democrats Independents 

Record caregiver information 82% 85% 85% 

Keep caregivers informed 91% 95% 91% 

Explain and demonstrate 91% 98% 94% 

Most North Dakota residents age 45 and older have experiences as family caregivers, or believe they are 
likely to be unpaid caregivers in the future. 

Current Caregivers= 15% Past Caregivers = 32% 

55% of those who haven't provided care think they will in the future. 

CAREGIVERS OVERSEEING MEDICATION MANAGEMENT= 64o/o 

. CAREGIVERS RESPONSIBLE FOR MEDICAL OR NURSING TASKS= 61% 

p !\~ ~ 
2016 AARP North Dakota Careg1v1ng Survey: The Caregiver Advise, Record , and Enable (CARE) Act 



. 90°/o of Caregivers say it's important to get instruction upon discharge from the hospi • . 

z.z:l5 
ti'3 
YT); Not very/Not 

at all, 2% 

Somewhat _ 
7% 

Not sure 
9% 

very 
90% 

Q: If your family member or loved one was 

being discharged from a hospital and you 
were caring for him or her, how important 

would it be for you to get instruction on 

medical tasks you may need to provide? 

• 
3 out of 10 family caregivers say they were not provided th, 
instruction or demonstration they needed from the hospital to 

perform their jobs at home. 

Additional findings: 

North Dakota caregivers report feeling stressed out emotionally and strained financially. 

Stressed Out = 60% Financially Strained = 28% Hard to Get Enough Rest = 50% 

• 
201 6 AARP North Dakota Careg1v1ng Survey: The Caregiver Advise, Record, and Enable (CARE) Act 2 
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P North Dakota commissioned a telephone survey of 1,004 residents age 45+ to learn about their 
experiences with family caregiving. The sample utilized ROD landline and cell phones. This report highlights 
results from residents interviewed from November 18 through December 27, 2016. The data was weighted by 
age and gender to reflect residents in North Dakota age 45+. The survey has a margin of sampling error of ±3.2 
percent. The survey annotation will be made available at www.aarp.org/research. 

AARP is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization, with a membership of nearly 38 million that helps people turn their goals 

and dreams into 'Real Possibilities' by changing the way America defines aging. With staffed offices in all 50 states, the 
District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands, AARP works to strengthen communities and promote the 

issues that matter most to families such as healthcare security, financial security, and personal fulfillment. AARP also 

advocates for individuals in the marketplace by selecting products and services of high quality and value to carry the 
AARP name. As a trusted source for news and information, AARP produces the world's largest circulation magazine, 

AARP The Magazine and AARP Bulletin . AARP does not endorse candidates for public office or make contributions to 
political campaigns or candidates. To learn more, visit www.aarp.org or follow @aarp and our CEO @JoAnn_Jenkins on 

Twitter . 

• AARP staff from the North Dakota State Office, Campaigns, State Advocacy and Strategy Integration (SASI}, and AARP 

Research contributed to the design, implementation, and reporting of this study. Special thanks go to AARP staff 

including Joshua Askvig, Lyle Halvorson, and Michael Chaussee - AARP North Dakota State Office; Chryste Hall, Scott 

•
ser, and Pricilla Hume - Campaigns; Denise Gaines - SASI; and Brittne Nelson, Angela Houghton, and Cheryl 

es -AARP Research . Please contact Terri Guengerich at 202-434-6306 for more information regarding this 

survey. 

• 

AARP Research I For more information about this survey, 
please contact Terri Guengerich at: 

202.434.6306 or e-mail tguengerich@aarp.org 

eal t ossibilltics 

Research 

2016 AARP North Dakota Careg1v1ng Survey: The Caregiver Advise. Record, and Enable (CARE) Act 3 
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North Dakota . 
January 24, 2017 

Testimony to the Senate Human Services Committee 

SB 2215 - Hospital Discharge Policies 

Dianne Billey, AARP Executive Council Member 

Good morning Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services 

Committee. My name is Dianne Billey and I serve as a volunteer on the AARP 

Executive Council. 

As I've continued to learn during my time working with AARP, family caregivers 

have an extremely difficult job. We tried to capture some of the stories of family 

caregivers in North Dakota in the book provided with this testimony (Voices of 

North Dakota Family Caregivers, 2016}. 

In it we've included quotes from family caregivers like Carol, who says "Caregivers 

need better training from professionals before sending patients home from (the) 

hospital." Or from Marilyn, from Mayville, North Dakota - who says, her biggest 

problem was providing wound care. She says if materials were provided to her, or 

if she'd have been told where to get them, she'd have done a much better job 

taking care of her husband. 

Then there's Vel Rae from Fargo. She provided care for her son who lost his battle 

with cancer. She said while she was treating him she didn't realize the morphine 

he was taking would cause memory loss and confusion - which only added to her 

confusion while providing the care . 
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• 
As we continue to hear stories like Carol's, Marilyn's, and Vel Rae's - it becomes 

easier to make connections to other people we know who have similar stories. I 

know Pat Muldoon, the focus of a story that ran on the front pages of the 

Bismarck Tribune and Grand Forks Herald Monday. She's sacrificed 15 years of her 

life taking care of her husband - and injured herself in the process. He spent his 

last days in a nursing home, but with her help, he was able to live at home for 

more than a decade longer than he otherwise would have. 

We know there are many, many more stories out there. 

More than 30 states have also put a premium on training family caregivers by 

passing versions of the CARE Act. Those states include Nebraska, Wyoming, Alaska 

and Indiana. Most recently, Governor John Kasich also signed the CARE Act in 

Ohio. 

Family caregiving is not an easy job. There's a lot to do to take care of patients 

when they go home. This bill helps lay the foundation for the care. It gives family 

caregivers a fair start, builds confidence, and prepares them for the tough job 

ahead. Maybe it will help keep some from getting frustrated or giving up. Maybe 

it will keep a few more of them in the job a little longer - and their loved ones at 

home, where we know they want to be. 

• 
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• 
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Senate Human Services Committee 

I am speaking in favor of SB No. 2215 

A couple of years ago, I testified in favor of a similar bill by stating "I am entering into a new phase 
of life as the caregiver to my mother." Well, I am thoroughly established in that role now, and as my 
mother's cognitive abilities fail, it has become even more important to me and to her that I have 
plenty of information from her caregivers about how best to maintain her health. 

In the past two years, I have attended all of her medical appointments, at first dealing with 
mysterious, or even slightly hostile, looks from her doctors. Now, the doctors look over her head at 
me to confirm or explain her statements. I ask doctors to write down information about her care and 
I take notes in my special "Mom" book. And we are fortunate to have a good deal of help from the 
nursing staff at the Mandan Edgewood Assisted Living facility where she now lives. 

I have been aggressive in questioning doctors and nurses about her health needs and how best to 
manage her care in her home. I don' t care ifl offend doctors and other medical professionals (and I 
have sometimes offended them) with my questions. It is our right to have this information and 
necessary for continuing health care and recovery . 

At 90, my mother has a range of ordinary health issues and has suffered a few broken bones. 
Good health maintenance will allow her to continue living in assisted care instead of a nursing 
home and, hopefully, not in a hospital. This is especially important because of her limited 
financial means. 

I have found that there is no way to adequately prepare for the various medical problems and 
emergencies that we all face as we age. However, the one thing I have learned in the past few 
years is that I will eventually be sitting in the hospital emergency room again facing something 
I have never even thought of before. I won't even know what questions to ask. I will be very 
dependent on hospital staff providing me with necessary information. This bill, if it becomes 
law, will be exactly what I need to help me manage the next steps of my family's health care. 

Thank you for your attention to the needs of families who have to provide care to a loved one. 
Senate Bill 2215 will help to remove some of the worry and difficulty for the caregiver and promote 
better health for the patient. 

Barbara Handy-Marchello 
Bismarck, North Dakota 
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Hospital discharge policies - Uncompensated Caregivers 

Senate Human Service - Senator Lee Presiding 

Good morning Chairwomen Lee and The Human Services committee. My name is Moira Solberg and I 

am the Director of Volunteer Caregivers for the Elderly here in Bismarck., ND. 

I am the "boots on the ground" person who along with many of my volunteers, work extremely hard at 

keeping our seniors out of the hospital and facilities-but we need heroes like you to help us do this. 

Times have changed. It is no longer about common sense. ND's little hospitals have been or are in the 

process of being "swallowed' up by corporate hospitals. 

Do you realize that with the "current'' HEPA regulation that the hospital doesn't have to give you any 

information about your own spouse or there cares? Let alone if you have someone else taking care of 

your mom if you do not live by her. 

The larger "corporate" hospitals no longer allow your own physician to see you. You have a 

"Hospitalist" This has a tremendous communication liability and the Hospital does not want to take the 

responsibility of what they are causing . 

. Recently I had one of our recipients who is 97 yr. old bachelor whose blood pressure had skyrocketed. 

took him in to Sanford Hospital. When I had left the evening before, he was resting comfortably. When 

I came back the next morning, they were preparing him to do extensive testing, and an MRI. I asked 

why and the nurse explained to me that he was acting unusual and he did not make sense. I asked her if 

she realized he could not hear hardly anything. This annoyed her. 

While she was taking his blood pressure she asked him a question and he responded "Yes". Afterword I 

asked "Ed, did you hear what she said" in which he responded "no". This happen d three times until she 

had the embarrassment of realizing the only thing that was wrong with his head was his hearing! How 

much money they spent on unnecessary tests because his file is the size of the bible and he is being 

treated by people who do not have the time to go through it and are unfamiliar with him. I was his only 

link between them him and his continued cares. His regular doctor will get a "written report" in a 

couple of days after his discharge. 

ND has a history of being "Mavericks" Big business has looked at our little sate as "simple and easy to 

control" but as in many other pieces of great legislation that you do to represent your constituents, 

please do not let them tell you "that this is already being done" Hospital policy covers this" ... If this truly 

was the case this bill should have no opposition. 

In a time where health care has been facing so many cuts we need to rely on friends, family and 

volunteers to fill in the gaps. This bill doesn't cost our state anything other than holding the correct 

people responsible for what they should already be doing. 

Thank you for your time and all you do in representing me and the ones I assist not big business. 



Vision 
The North Dakota Hospital Association 

will take an active leadership role in major 
Healthcare issues. 
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North Dakota if 
Hospital Association $ IJ Est. 1934 The North Dakota Hospital Association 

exists to advance the health status of persons 
served by the membership. 

Testimony: 2017 SB 2215 

Senate Human Services Committee 

Senator Judy Lee, Chairman 

January 24, 2017 

Good morning Chairman Lee and Members of the Senate Human Services Committee. I am 

Jerry E. Jurena, President of the North Dakota Hospital Association. I am here to testify 

regarding 2017 Senate Bill 2215 and ask that you give this bill a Do Not Pass recommendation. 

While we can appreciate the intent of the bill , it would place additional requirements on hospitals 

that are unnecessary. All hospitals want to ensure proper care of patients after their discharge 

and to avoid unnecessary readmissions. These are issues hospitals address every day - and do 

so effectively. 

This bill would require hospitals to establish written discharge policies that must allow a patient 

to designate an uncompensated caregiver and require documentation of that caregiver. It would 

mandate that hospitals notify the designated uncompensated caregiver of the patient's 

discharge or transfer to another facility and that the hospital provide the patient and 

uncompensated caregiver "instruction and training" for the patient's aftercare before the patient 

may be discharged. 

Our member hospitals oppose this bill for the following reasons: 

• It creates additional expense by requiring additional documentation of care to be 

provided by non-hospital staff in a non-hospital setting after leaving the hospital. 

PO Box 7340 Bismarck, ND 58507-7340 Phone 701 224-9732 Fax 701 224-9529 
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• The bill will require hospitals to hire additional staff. The hospitals already have a 

shortage of professional staff and hiring additional people will be difficult. 

• There are no funds allocated to provide this service. This bill creates an unfunded 

mandate imposed on the hospitals . 

• It will create additional delay in discharging patients because the caregiver must be 

notified and given instruction and training in how to care for the patient after leaving the 

hospital. All of this must be done before the patient may be discharged. What if the 

caregiver isn't responsive to the notification? What if the caregiver must travel for an 

extended period in order to get to the hospital? What if the caregiver isn't available when 

the appropriate staff is? 

This bill does have language that says a hospital is not required to adopt discharge 

policies that would delay a patient's discharge or transfer to another facility. It does not 

say, however, that a hospital is not required to provide the necessary notification or 

training if it would delay discharge. These two provisions are at odds with each other. 

How is a hospital to proceed if the caregiver is not responding in a timely manner? 

Should it discharge the patient anyway and not fulfill its duty to notify and train the 

caregiver? Or should it delay the discharge? This puts hospitals in a no win situation. 

• The bill also creates a potential violation of the patient's privacy rights because it 

requires the hospital to notify the uncompensated caregiver. Unless the patient has also 

signed a HIPAA compliant authorization to release information, the hospital may be 

disclosing protected health information in violation of state and federal laws governing 

health information privacy and security. Hospitals will now have to ensure that every 

patient has signed an appropriation authorization for release of information before it may 

fulfill its duties under this bill. 

• The bill also potentially creates additional liability for the hospitals . We have no control of 

the care that would be provided by the uncompensated caregiver to the patient after 

discharge. The hospital, however, is required to provide instruction and training to the 
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uncompensated caregiver regarding how to provide aftercare for the patient. What if the 

uncompensated caregiver misunderstands or forgets the instructions? What if the care is 

performed poorly and harms the patient? Is the hospital responsible for failing to ensure 

the uncompensated caregiver sufficiently understood the discharge plan? Although the 

bill contains a vague immunity from liability provision, even if it is enforceable, hospitals 

will still undoubtedly be sued and will incur costs in defending themselves. 

• Finally, and probably most importantly, we are not aware of any problems or issues 

regarding the current method of discharge planning hospitals now offer. Hospitals have 

licensing and accreditation requirements they must abide by in their discharge practices. 

And hospitals do work with referring facilities and families on the coordination of care 

upon discharge. This bill adds no further benefit to patients while creating a burdensome 

unfunded mandate on hospitals. 

We oppose this bill and ask that you give this it a Do Not Pass recommendation . 

I would be happy to try to answer any questions you may have. Thank you. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jerry E. Jurena, President 

North Dakota Hospital Association 
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Caring for the caregivers: ND study finds 
challenges in helping elderly stay at home 
By Patrick Springer on Jan 22, 2017 at 3:13 p.m. 

WEST FARGO-Patricia Muldoon spent years taking care of her disabled husband. As 

his condition deteriorated with age, she quit her job to be a round-the-clock caregiver so 

he could stay at home. 

She devoted the last 15 years of her husband's life-he died in July at age 77-to caring 

for the man who asked her four times to be his wife before she gave a heartfelt yes. 

"All my life, I loved him to the moon and back," she said. "He was a lovely man." 

http://www. info rum. com/news/ 4 203 1 71-caring-caregivers-nd-study-finds-challenges-helpin... 2/3/201 7 
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81 ; witJ6 littlr 011+< .. idc :.upport, Muldoon sacrificed to care for her husband. She injured her 

back multiple times, and ultimately could no longer take care of him, requiring him to 

spend his last days in a nursing home. 

Muldoon remains frustrated that the state didn't do more to help, since years of care in a 

nursing home-which typically costs $6,000 to $7,000 monthly-would have cost far 

more. 

"The state seemed not to understand," said Muldoon, a former nurse's aide. Ten hours of 

respite care a week would have made a big difference, she said, at modest cost. "They 

still don't get the picture." 

North Dakota ranks low in comparison to other states in the proportion of funding that is 

devoted to helping elderly residents remain at home. For every dollar, 85 cents went to 

nursing homes and 15 cents going to home- or community-based services, according to 

an analysis by AARP of 2011 figures. 

"We know that older adults in North Dakota want to stay safe and independent at home as • 

long as they can ," said Josh Askvig, state director of AARP North Dakota. The advocacy 

group estimates that the money spent to support one person in a nursing home could pay 

for three in a home- or community-based setting. 

The North Dakota Legislature is considering several bills that would help provide support 

for caregivers, the result of an interim study on the gaps in services and recommended 

solutions. 

Proposals under House Bill 1038 include a $197,580 pilot project for caregiver training, 

$200,000 in federal funds for a respite care program, an increase of $1 .5 million in 

support for service for the elderly and disabled, and a report on levels of state spending 

for nursing home care as well as home- and community-based support. 

"These are, I think, some important steps," Askvig said of the proposals under 

consideration in the Legislature. North Dakota has made progress, he added. He 

estimated the proportion of funding for at-home care of the elderly probably now is closer 

to 20 percent than 15 percent from a few years ago. 
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B1 ; th'%~h~l'3n~"'s f : ·- ta~· ing care of the state's elderly will grow as the population ages, a 

study for lawmakers completed by North Dakota State University Extension pointed out. 

Between 2010 and 2040, the number of adults 85 and older in North Dakota is expected 

to grow by 43 percent, an increase of about 7,200 people. By 2025, 18 percent of the 

state's population is estimated to be 65 or older. 

The 62, 100 caregivers in North Dakota provide an estimated $860 million in 

uncompensated care, according to a study by AARP. The authors of the NDSU Extension 

study said those figures underscore the importance of supporting caregivers. 

The study identified challenges facing caregivers, including: 

• 80 percent provide nursing care, yet half reported receiving no training. 

• 50 percent of caregivers surveyed reported insufficient respite care, adding to their 

stress and burden. 

• Many reported experiencing a financial burden from their caregiving, including having to 

quit working or work fewer hours. 

"There's always a challenge of finding enough money to pay for the institutional 

caregiving, which we need," said Jane Strommen, a gerontology specialist with the 

Extension Service and one of the report's authors. "The challenge is being able to find 

enough money for the entire continuum." 

Although financial support for caregivers lags, "That's actually the most cost-effective way 

to care for the elderly," Strommen said . 

"Especially in rural areas, providing home-based services is very challenging for a number 

of reasons," including workforce shortages and long distances, Strommen said. Even in 

urban areas, however, the availability of services does not always mean that adequate 

services are available, she said. 

"My biggest hope is the study brings attention to the needs of caregivers," said Heather 

Fuller, an assistant professor of human development and family science at NDSU and 

http://www.inforum.com/news/4203171-caring-caregivers-nd-study-finds-challenges-helpin. .. 2/3/2017 
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ari >th~.g5au+ror r.f th: '.eg~:>lative study. "The struggles are often pretty silent and pretty 

hidden." 

Another bill before the Legislature, Senate Bill 2215, would establish discharge protocols 

for hospitals to ensure that caregivers have opportunities for instruction and training in 

providing aftercare. 

Mike and Marilyn Worner, a retired couple in Mayville, are among the supporters for 

specifying discharge plans. 

Last year, after Mike Worner came home from major shoulder surgery, Marilyn had 

conflicting instructions from the physician and nurses, and was confused about how to 

properly change her husband's bandages. 

"I had no idea what to do," Marilyn Worner said. Luckily, a neighbor who was a retired 

nurse was able to help. 

"We have no grievance against hospitals," Mike Worner said, adding his surgery turned 

out well. "In my opinion, we have a void in the laws." 

Patricia Muldoon, who is 70 and relies on Social Security, uses a walker because of her 

back injuries. She once had a home aide who came in to clean her apartment and do her 

laundry, but that service was eliminated in budget cuts several years ago. 

Her husband had suffered from polio as a child, which left his right side largely paralyzed. 

He worked despite his disability; first in a factory, then at a highway weigh station and 

finally as a greeter at a bingo hall. 

But in his later years, he was stricken with post-polio and his health deteriorated. He fell 

frequently and developed dementia, increasing the burden of care and the toll on 

Muldoon's body, especially her bad back. 

"I hope they pass this caregiver act," she said, referring to pending legislation. "I want 

other people to get that help that I didn't get. I hope something gets done, because people 

need help." 

http://www.inforum.com/news/4203171-caring-caregivers-nd-study-finds-challenges-helpin.. . 2/3/2017 
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Patrick Springer first joined the reporting staff of The Forum in 1985. He can be reached by calling 

701 -241-5522. Have a comment to share about a story? Letters to the editor should include author's 

name, address and phone number. Generally, letters should be no longer than 250 words. All letters 

are subject to editing. Send to letters@forumcomm.com 

pspringer@forumcomm.com 
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SB 2215 
Testimony to House Human Services 

Chairman Weisz and members of the committee, my name is 
Nicole Poolman, state senator from District 7 representing 
Bismarck and Lincoln. SB 2215 was put forward by the interim 
Human Services committee after studying caregivers in North 
Dakota. It encourages hospitals to provide adequate training for 
family caregivers before a patient leaves the hospital. 

The bill ensures that hospitals will: 
*Ask patients if they want to appoint a family caregiver 
*Record the family caregiver in the medical record 
*Notify the family caregiver when the patient is to be 
discharged from the hospital 
*Show the family caregiver how to provide medical tasks 
they'll be asked to provide at home 

With proper training, family members can provide the 
appropriate level of care to keep a patient at home. With over 
62,000 caregivers in North Dakota providing over 58 million 
hours of unpaid care annually, this not only provides a safe 
environment for the patient, it makes a difference to North 
Dakota's bottom line. 
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Real Possibilities in 

North Dakota 
March 13, 2017 

House Human Services Committee 
SB 2215- DO PASS 

Josh Askvig 
jaskvig@aarp.org or 701-989-0129 

Chairman Weisz, members of the House Human Services Committee, I am Josh 
Askvig, State Director for AARP North Dakota. Thank you for the opportunity to 
appear before you today to share AARP's thoughts on how to improve hospital to 
home transitions. We stand in support of SB 2215. 

You have he~rd the story about AARP's founder, Dr. Ethel Percy Andrus, the retired 
teacher turned advocate. We'd like reiterate her commitment to the health and 
financial security of all Americans, especially the 50+. Her spirit is in all of us as we 
continue the work of AARP. Again, we are a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization with 
a current membership in North Dakota of approximately 87,000. Nationwide, we 
have nearly 38 million members. We hear from our members every day - about their 
dreams to live longer, healthier and fulfilled lives. 

One of the things we continue to hear from our members in North Dakota is the work 
they do as caregivers for their loved ones. Through our research we know that there 
are approximately 62,100 individual caregivers in North Dakota that provide 
over 58 million hours of uncompensated care valued at over $860 million. In 
recent years, the role of family caregivers has greatly expanded from coordinating 
and providing personal care and household chores to include medical or nursing 
tasks such as wound care and injections. For the individuals doing this work in North 
Dakota it is a labor of love, but it' comes witt"'I stress, burnout and often times at a 
cost to their own health and financial stability. Providing support for these caregivers 
is critical toward ensuring that individuals can safely s·tay in their homes as they age. 
Our loved ones can remain independent at home with caregiver support. 

We know that family members have been taking care of each other forever, but we 
also know how we live today is dramatically different than it was even 20 years ago . 
We're living longer - and because of that our health care needs are changing. 



Health care issues can be difficult physically and emotionally on both the patient and 
the caregiver. Plus, understanding medication and therapy is complex. 

That is why AARP began exploring ways to assist these family caregivers to best 
support them. AARP came up with a no state dollar cost policy proposal that asks 
hospitals to do a few things to make the transition of patients, and the people THEY 
identify as the person who will be taking care of them at home, a little easier. 

While I know you have heard this bill before, I still think it would benefit us walking 
through the bill: 

Page 1, Lines 6-16- this part of the bill provides definitions to ensure clarity in the 
remainder of the bill. Specifically, it outlines what constitutes an aftercare task, most 
importantly including those complex medical or nursing tasks outlined above. Also, it 
provides a definition of discharge to clearly stipulate when the aftercare instructions 
would be provided. Last, it provides a clear definition of who is considered a 
caregiver for the purposes of the bill. 

Page 1, Lines 17-24 AND Page 2, lines 1-11- This is the meat of the bill. This part of 
the bill ensures: 

1. Hospitals ask patients if they would like to designate someone as an 
"uncompensated caregiver" (subsection "b.") - we believe most often that is a 
family member which is why AARP refers to these individuals as family 
caregivers most often. However, as stated in the definition it does NOT 
require them to be a family member, an important distinction we will discuss 
later in how the CARE Act differs from the rules hospitals already follow. 

2. If, and only if, the patient has designated a caregiver, it requires that the 
family caregiver be documented as part of the official medical record 
(subsection "c."). This is an important piece of the bill. It recognizes the 
caregiver as an important component of keeping the patient safe and 
providing the ability to heal when they leave the hospital. It also ensures the 
hospital knows who will be providing care when the patient leaves the 
hospital. Also, it ensures that the patient's caregiver is recognized by the 
hospital to share at the most critical times for the patient. A quick note, this bill 

I I 

does nothing to change federal privacy rights or HIPAA regulations. These 
regulations and information release procedures would all still need to be met 
and followed. 

3. Because we've identified the importance of the role of the caregiver, the bill 
also ensures hospitals let the family caregiver know when the patient is to be 
discharged - whether the patient is going home or being transferred to 
another facility (subsection "d."). Again, this bill does nothing to change 
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federal privacy rights or HIPAA regulations. They would all still need to be met 
and followed . 

4. Then, and this is really the key piece of the legislation - the piece the family 
caregivers continue to ask for ... the bill asks hospitals to show the caregiver 
how to do what he or she is being asked to do (subsections "e." and "f ."). 
Things like how to properly measure and distribute medicine - sometimes 
even giving shots, how to change bandages and clean wounds, and there's 
often some kind of equipment - like slings, braces or meters - they should be 
taught how to use them - how to take them on and off, how to read them and 
interpret them. 

5. The last part just ensures that the discharge instructions get documented 
(subsection "g."). 

Page 2, Lines 7-11 - This part of the bill ensures that hospitals use national 
standards and federal regulations. 

Page 2, Lines 12-22 - This piece of the bill provides some relief for hospitals to 
address concerns they raised through ongoing discussions. Specifically: 

1. Ensures that legal healthcare directives are followed. 
2. Ensures that hospitals can discharge patients in a timely manner. This section 

specifically was written to address concerns we heard about how the CARE 
Act would cause delays in discharge proceedings. You will likely hear they 
feel it conflicts with subsection "f." above. Subsection "f." says they have to 
provide an "opportunity" for instruction before discharge. 

3. This part makes it clear that hospitals don't have to chase down a caregiver if 
a patient declines to designate one. 

4. Here the bill addresses a major hospital concern we heard as we discussed 
this bill, the question of liability. This section clearly states that a hospital 
cannot be held liable for mistakes made by a caregiver in home setting, as 
long as they follow the provisions of the statute. 

It is worth noting that this bill has changed dramatically from the initial bill discussed 
in the 2015 session due to significant and appreciated input from North Dakota 

• hospitals. We were thankful for the opportunity tc? work with them during the interim. 
Additionally, we recently met with them again to discuss possible further changes, a 
few of which we will suggest to more clearly address their concerns. Unfortunately, 
we were left disappointed that it appears they still want to stand in the way of 
supporting North Dakota family caregivers. 

Before we get into suggested edits, let me address one concern up front. We know 
from discussions and previous testimony that hospitals argue that they already do 
much of what the bill is asking or that the requirements in the bill are duplicative of 
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the Medicare and Medicaid Cost of Participation or the Joint Commission of Hospital 
Accreditation standards. Let me walk you through where SB2215 will close 
loopholes in the existing federal rules or standards. 

Specifically, AARP evaluated the Medicaid and Medicare rules and the Joint 
Commission standards. Our experts also looked into the laws and regulations that 
govern hospitals in North Dakota. Attached to your testimony is a chart outlining how 
the CARE Act differentiates from current regulations and standards. 

As you can see from the attachment, there are loopholes that exist in the current 
rules. The CARE Act simply looks to close them to ensure that caregivers get the 
information and instruction they need. You may hear about these requirements 
being stringent or causing the need for additional staff requirements. We would note 
that the bill is silent on how the instruction or demonstration would need to be 
provided. In fact, when we talk about instruction for caregivers, we leave options 
open for hospitals. They can determine the best way to teach the family caregivers -
they could even produce videos and ~how them at the hospital or provide links to 
videos family caregivers can watch when they leave. It also may be an opportunity 
for the use of telehealth. 

So now that we know there are loopholes, let me talk through some possible 
amendments that might address other concerns. 

We are aware that hospitals are concerned about the CARE Act delaying a 
discharge due to not reaching a designated caregiver. Understanding that concern 
we suggest that on page 2 under the section "23-49-03. Limitations - Immunity" that 
the current "2." be reworded and split into two subsets. You can read the suggested 
amendment on the handout "AARP Suggested Amendments." This edit also further 
ensures that hospitals know they do not need to delay a discharge due this bill. 

Additionally, we were made aware of concerns about potential conflict :with federal 
privacy and HIPAA regulations. While it is contained in the existing bill, it is a bit 
unclear. To clarify this we have attached suggested edit that would split this out from 
the original "2." Under "23-49-03. Limitations - Immunity." The attached amendment 

• • 
labeled "3." and "4." on our suggestlons would explicitly ensure that hospitals do not 
need to change their patient information disclosure proceedures to comply with the 
CARE Act. 
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I anticipate you will hear continued concerns about liability. As I mentioned we feel 
this is addressed in the bill in the language on page 2, lines 20-22. This language 
included in the current version was suggested by the hospitals during the Interim. 
However, because this continues to be raised, this was a specific point of discussion • 
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between us and the hospitals since we saw you in January. The last suggested edits 
are to provide the committee with additional options to provide more clarity on the 
issue of liability. Specifically, the amendment adds two new items "L" and "8." 
clearly further stipulating that hospitals are not liable for following the CARE Act. It 
also ensures that if someone is designated as a caregiver that does not want to be a 
designated caregiver they are not obligated to perform the tasks. 

Before I give up the podium, I think it worth sharing some additional new information 
we have regarding public opinion on the provisions in this bill. AARP conducted a 
telephone survey of about 1,000 North Dakota residents 45-years-old and older in 
November and December. 

First, we discovered that the specific requirements found in the CARE Act (SB 2215) 
are important to North Dakotans. Of the people surveyed, more than 80-percent say 
they support requiring hospitals to record caregiver information when patients are 
admitted to the hospital. The exact figures can be found on the bar graph near the 
top of page one. The percentages of support increased when we asked respondents 
about the other requirements of the bill. Ninety-percent say they support requiring 
hospitals to keep caregivers informed of major decisions. And 93-percent say they 
support requiring hospitals to demonstrate medical tasks to family caregivers . 

This support isn't partisan, it is fai rly consistent among party affiliation. The 
percentages are found in the middle section of the front page of the document 
provided . 

We learned a couple of other things from the survey. We learned that almost half of 
the people surveyed are either currently acting as a family caregiver or have in the 
past (47%). Those who serve as family caregivers drive their loved ones to 
appointments (87%), help them with meals (79%), and perform medical tasks as 
well. Nearly two-thirds say they oversee medical management (64%) and more than 
six in ten .say they are responsible for other medical or nursing tasks (61 %). 

We also asked them how often they perform those medical or nursing tasks. Over 
half say they c;lo it daily (q1 %) and another 20-percent say they dp it weekly. ,So, 
more than seven in 10 people perform a medical or nursing task once a week. 
These findings reinforce the bill's intent to get them the instruction and 
demonstration necessary to perform those tasks. 

The survey takers think it's important too. When we asked respondents if they think 
it would be important for them to receive instruction on medical tasks for their loved 
ones if they were asked to care for them - 90-percent said it would be extremely or 
very important. 



The last finding we would like to share is how well hospitals are doing in preparing 
them for the tasks they'll be asked to perform. We asked current and former • 
caregivers if they were provided with instruction or demonstration of any medical 
tasks that they'd be asked to perform upon discharge. One-third of respondents 
said, "No." 

Even if we consider that percentage an improvement since the Interim study done by 
the NDSU Extension Service that reported about 50-percent of caregivers weren't 
getting that information when it conducted a non-scientific survey two years ago -
Even if - nearly one in three people in the AARP phone survey still say they 
received no instruction. 

Statistics can be informative, but they rarely tell the whole story. That's why we 
asked a member of our executive council Dianne Billey from Ellendale and Ellen 
Schafer from Bismarck to say a few words. 

Before I turn it over to Dianne and Ellen, do you have any questions? 

• 

• 



• • NORTH DAKOTA CARE ACT COMPARISON TO STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS • 
All of these regulations are found in North Dakota Century Code and Administrative Rules. They are all part of Chapter 33-07-01.1 North Dakota 

Licensing Rules for Hospitals. Access to Regulations is through North Dakota Department of Health; Health Facilities: 

http://www.ndhealth.gov/hf /North Dakota Hospitals Critical access.htm. Upon entering the website navigate to the appropriate regulation 

through the menu links. 

NORTH DAKOTA ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION JOINT COMMISSION ON ACCREDITATION 
CARE Act REGULATIONS (CoPs) OF HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

Identification of No requirement for identification of the Hospitals and state hospital The Joint Commission's standards for 
Family Caregiver and family caregiver or including the associations may claim that they medical record keeping require information 
Including him/her in information in the patient record currently perform the tasks outlined in identifying the patient and "the name of 
Patient Record - the CARE Act (i.e., identification of the any legally authorized representative." 

33-07-01.1-20. Medical records services. caregiver in the medical record, There is no mention of nor any 

notifying the caregiver of a transfer or 
requirement of the need to elicit and 

discharge, and providing instructions 
document the identification of the patient's 

for the caregiver to perform post-
caregiver. 

discharge medical tasks). 

-
While the CoPs include requirements 

for patient's rights and discharge 

planning, the federal regulations and 
State Operations Manual that 

provides interpretive guidelines of the 

regulations do not include the specific 

provisions of the CARE Act. 

While the CoPs require the hospital to 
notify a family member or 
representative of the patient's 
admission into a hospital, the CoPs do 
not require the hospital to provide the . patient an opportunity to designate a 
caregiver or for the information to be 
added to the patient's medical record. 



NORTH DAKOTA ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION JOINT COMMISSION ON ACCREDITATION 
CARE Act REGULATIONS (CoPs) OF HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

Notification of Although a specific requirement to notify It cannot be assumed that the person While the Joint Commission's standards 
Caregiver if Patient is the caregiver is not included, discharge identified as a family member or legal state that the patient's family should 
Being Discharged or planning must be consistent with patient representative for the purpose of participate in the patient's discharge or 
Transferred and family needs, inferring family admission notification is the patient's transfer, the standards do not specify the 

involvement. In addition, the family caregiver. Further, the reference to a role of the patient' s caregiver. 
receives instruction upon discharge (see family member or legal representative The Joint Commission's standards state 
below). This would imply some sort of is not inclusive of all individuals the that when the family is involved in decision 
notification of the patient's pending patient may want to identify as a making or in ongoing care, they must be 
discharge or transfer. caregiver. The CARE Act simply included in the discharge process. 

requires the hospital to ask the However, the Joint Commission's standards 
33-07-01.1-09. Governing body patient or the patient's representative do not recognize that the patient's primary 

ifs/he would like to designate a caregiver may not be a family member. 
caregiver. 

Provide Training of 
The CoPs requires that "as needed, 

The Joint Commission's standards do not 
Any After Care Tasks 

the patient and family members or 
require actual instruction of the caregiver 

Caregiver Will Need in the continuing care needed. 
to Perform interested persons must be counseled 

to prepare them for post-hospital Before the hospital discharges or transfers 
care. a patient, it must inform and educate the 

patient about the type of post-discharge 
While the CoPs include language for care a patient is going to need. 

- hospitals to provide education and 
Instructions to family members upon 

training to caregivers as part of the Before the patient is discharged, the 
discharge are required. Training on after 

discharge planning process, the hospital informs the patient, and also the 
care tasks may be implied but not 

regulation includes a loophole with patient's family when it is involved in 
specified. 

the language "as needed". decision making or ongoing care, of the 
kinds of continuing care, treatment, and 

This language allows for the hospital services the patient will need. 

- to determine when education and 

training will be provided to 
However, this is clearly not the same as 

caregivers, which allows them the 
providing instruction or training to t he 

option to opt out from providing patient' s family. And furthermore, t he 
education and training to caregivers. patient's family may or may not include the 

• • • 



CARE Act 
NORTH DAKOTA ADMINISTRATIVE 

REGULATIONS 
CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION 

(CoPs) 

The CARE Act simply closes the 

loophole and requires that all 

caregivers be trained to perform the 

post-discharge tasks necessary to keep 

the patient safe. 

JOINT COMMISSlON' ON ACCREDITATION 
OF HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

individual designated as the patient's 
caregiver. There is no specific mention of 
providing training to caregivers. 



• 

• 
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SB 2215 

AARP Suggested Edits 

REWORD Page 2 Lines 12-22 with the following 

23-49-03. Limitations - Immunity. 

1. This chapter may not be construed to interfere with the rights of an agent operating under a valid 

health care directive under chapter 23-06.5. 

2. This chapter does not require a hospital to adopt discharge policies that would delay a patient's 

discharge or transfer to another facility or require the disclosure of protected health information 

without obtaining a patient's concent as required by state and federal laws governing health 

information privacy and security. In the event the hospital is unable to contact the designated 

caregiver at the time of discharge or transfer: 

a. The lack of contact shall not interfere with, delay or otherwise affect the discharge or 

transfer of the patient. 

b. The lack of contact shall not interfere with, delay or otherwise affect the medical care 

provided to the patient. 

3. This chapter does not require a hospital to disclose protected health information without 

obtaining the patient's consent pursuant to the hospital's established procedures for releasing 

personal health information and in compliance with applicable state and federal law. 

4. If the patient declines to consent to the release of personal health information, the hospital is not 

required to provide notice to the designated caregiver and shall not release the personal health 

information. 

b 5. This chapter does not require a patient designate an uncompensated caregiver 

Lh- Q,_ This chapter does not create a private right of action against a hospital or a hospital's 

employee, contractor, or duly authorized agent for providing the instruction and services required 

under this chapter. 

7. A hospital and its emplovees shall not be held liable, provided it has complied with thi,s chapter 

and acted reasonably and in good faith, for the services rendered or not rendered by the caregiver to 

the patient at the patient's residence. 

8. A designation of a caregiver by a patient does not obligate the designated caregiver to perform 

any aftercare tasks for the patient. 

P. io 



W 6 AARP North Dakota Caregiving Survey: 
• rwhelming Support for the CARE Act 

-NUlP 
Real ssibilitles 

Research 

More than 80 percent of North Dakota likely voters age 45 and older support the measures in The 
Caregiver Advise, Record, and Enable (CARE) Act, which will help unpaid family caregivers when their loved 
ones go into the hospital and as they 
transition home. The bill features 
three important provisions that 
require hospitals to provide 
instructions on the medical tasks the 
family caregiver may need to perform 
at home, keep a family caregiver 
informed of major decisions, like 
transferring or discharging the 
patient, and to engage with 
caregivers by recording the name of 
the family caregiver when a loved 
one is admitted into a hospital. 

Support for the three CARE Act 
measures asked about in this survey 
- recording the name of the 
caregiver keeping caregivers l med, and demonstrating 

ical tasks to caregivers -
hes well over the majority for 

likely voters in North Dakota 
regardless of their political party. 

Support for Proposals to Help Family Caregivers When Loved Ones 
Go into Hospitals Among North Dakota Likely Voters Age 45+ 

(n=877) 

100% 

80% 

60% 

40% 

20% 

0% 

• Support Neither support/oppose/unsure 

Requiring hospitals to 
record caregiver 
information upon 

admission 

90% 

4% 5% 

Requiring hospitals to 
keep caregivers informed 

of major decisions 

• Oppose 

93% 

3% 4% 

Requiring hospitals to 
demonstrate medical 
tasks to caregivers 

Likely Voters Republicans Democrats Independents 

Record caregiver information 82% 85% 85% 

Keep caregivers informed 91% 95% 91% 

Explain and demonstrate 91% 98% 94% 

Most North Dakota residents age 45 and older have experiences as family caregivers, or believe they are 
likely to be caregivers in the future. North Dakota residents age 45 and older say they have provided care -­
either currently ( 15%) or in the past (32%) -- on an unpaid basis for an adult loved one who is ill, frail, elderly, or 
who has a disability. Of those who have never provided care, over half (55%) say it is likely they will do so in the 

• future. • ' • 1 

' 

Current family caregivers in North Dakota are women (61%) who are 55 years of age or older (68%) and 
have been employed either full- or part-time while providing care (63%). They are likely to be married 
(67%), and have at least a two-year college degree (59%). About one in six also have a child 18 or under living 
with them ( 16% ). The median age of the loved one they care for is 80 years of age. 

North Dakota current and former caregivers report feeling stressed out emotionally (60%) and strained 

•
ncially (28%). Caregivers find it difficult to get enough rest (50%), exercise regularly (32%), maintain a 
thy diet (26%), or experience their own health problems (22%). Six in ten working caregivers are also 

stressed out in trying to balance their work and family. 

2016 AARP North Dakota Careg1v1ng Survey The Caregiver Advise, Record, and Enable (CARE) Act 



Methodology: 

AARP North Dakota commissioned a telephone survey of 1,004 residents age 45+ to learn about their 
experiences with family caregiving. The sample utilized ROD landline and cell phones. This report highlights 
results from residents interviewed from November 18 through December 27, 2016. The data was weighted by 
age and gender to reflect residents in North Dakota age 45+. The survey has a margin of sampling error of ±3.2 
percent. The survey annotation will be made available at www.aarp.org/research. 

AARP is a nonprofit, nonpartisan organization, with a membership of nearly 38 million that helps people turn their goals 

and dreams into 'Real Possibilities' by changing the way America defines aging. With staffed offices in all 50 states, the 
District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands, AARP works to strengthen communities and promote the 
issues that matter most to families such as healthcare security, financial security, and personal fulfillment. AARP also 

advocates for individuals in the marketplace by selecting products and services of high quality and value to carry the 

AARP name. As a trusted source for news and information, AARP produces the world 's largest circulation magazine, 

AARP The Magazine and AARP Bulletin. AARP does not endorse candidates for public office or make contributions to 

political campaigns or candidates. To learn more, visit www.aarp.org or follow @aarp and our CEO @JoAnn_Jenkins on 
Twitter. 

AARP staff from the North Dakota State Office, Campaigns, State Advocacy and Strategy Integration (SASI), and AARP 

Research contributed to the design, implementation, and reporting of this study. Special thanks go to AARP staff 
including Joshua Askvig, Lyle Halvorson, and Michael Chaussee - AARP North Dakota State Office; Chryste Hall, Scott 

Musser, and Pricilla Hume - Campaigns; Denise Gaines - SASI; and Brittne Nelson, Angela Houghton, and Cheryl 

Barnes -AARP Research. Please contact Terri Guengerich at 202-434-6306 for more information regarding this 

survey. 

AARP Research I For more information about this survey, 
please contact Terri Guengerich at: 

202.434.6306 or e-mail tguengerich@aarp.org 

-AARP 
Peal Possibllitios 

Research 

• 

• 
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Real Possibilities in 

North Dakota 
March 13, 2017 

Testimony to the House Human Services Committee 

SUPPORT SB 2215 - Hospital Discharge Policies 

Dianne Billey, AARP Executive Council Member 

Good morning Chairman Weisz and members of the House Human Services 

Committee. My name is Dianne Billey and I serve as a volunteer on the AARP 

Executive Council. 

As I've continued to learn during my time working with AARP, family caregivers 

have an extremely difficult job. We tried to capture some of the stories of family 

caregivers in North Dakota in the book provided with this testimony (Voices of 

North Dakota Family Caregivers, 2016}. 

In it we've included quotes from family caregivers like Carol, who says "Caregivers 

need better training from professionals before sending patients home from (the} 

hospital." Or from Marilyn, from Mayville, North Dakota - who says, her biggest 

problem was providing wound care. She says if materials were provided to her, or 

if she'd have been told where to get them, she'd have done a much better job 

taking care of her husband. 

Then there's Vel Rae from Fargo. She provided care for her son who lost his battle 

with cancer. She said while she was treating him she didn't realize the morphine 

he was taking would cause memory loss and confusion - which only added to her 

confusion while providing the care . 



As we continue to hear stories like Carol's, Marilyn's, and Vel Rae's - it becomes 

easier to make connections to other people we know who have similar stories. I 

know Pat Muldoon, the focus of a story (attached) that ran on the front pages of 

the Bismarck Tribune and Grand Forks Herald recently. She's sacrificed 15 years of 

her life taking care of her husband - and injured herself in the process. He spent 

his last days in a nursing home, but with her help, he was able to live at home for 

more than a decade longer than he otherwise would have. 

We know there are many, many more stories out there. 

More than 30 states have also put a premium on training family caregivers by 

passing versions of the CARE Act. Those states include Nebraska, Wyoming, Alaska 

and Indiana. Most recently, Governor John Kasich also signed the CARE Act in 

Ohio. 

Family caregiving is not an easy job. There's a lot to do to take care of patients 

when they go home. This bill helps lay the foundation for the care. It gives family 

caregivers a fair start, builds confidence, and prepares them for the tough job 

ahead. Maybe it will help keep some from getting frustrated or giving up. Maybe 

it will keep a few more of them in the job a little longer - and their loved ones at 

home, where we know they want to be. 

Thank you for your time and I urge you to support SB 2215 the CARE Act. 

• 

• 

• 



,jfl,j/LU!f 1.,anng ror me caregivers: NU slUay nnas cna11enges in ne1ping e1aeny siay a1nome11Nr-UKUIVI 

Y.3 
caregivers: ND study finds 

9iallenges in helping elderly stay at home 
-

85 

By Patrick Springer on Jan 22, 2017 at 3:13 p.m. 

WEST FARGO-Patricia Muldoon spent years taking care of her disabled husband. As his 

condition deteriorated with age, she quit herjob to be a round-the-clock caregiver so he 

could stay at home. 

She devoted the last 15 years of her husband's life-he died in July at age 77-to caring 

for the man who·asked her four times to be his wife before she gave, a heartfelt yes. 

"All my life, I loved him to the moon and back," she said. "He was a lovely man." 

But with little outside support, Muldoon sacrificed to care for her husband. She injured her 

Jiifk multiple times, and ultimately could no longer take care of him, requiring him to 

. nd his last days in a nursing home. 
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85 hat the state didn't 

- - - - - -- - - - - -· -·r· - -- -- - J ___ _ _ of care in a 

nursing home-which typically costs $6,000 to 

·$7,000 monthly-would have cost far more. · 

. + r 

• 

"The state seemed not to understand," said Muldoon, a former nurse's aide. Ten hours of 

respite care a week would have made a big difference, she said, at modest cost. "They still 

don't get the picture." 

North Dakota ranks low in comparison to other states in the proportion of funding that is 

devoted to helping elderly residents remain at home. For every dollar, 85 cents went to 

nursing homes and 15 cents going to home- or community-based services, according to • 

an analysis by AARP of 2011 figures. 

"We know that older adults in North Dakota want to stay safe and independent at home as 

long as they can," said Josh Askvig, state director of AARP North Dakota. The advocacy 

group estimates that the money spent to support one person in a nursing home could pay 

for three in a home- or community-based setting. 

The North Dakota Legislature is considering several bills that would help provide support 

for caregivers, the result of an interim study on the gaps in services and recommended 
f I 

solutions. 
I ' 

Proposals under House Bill 1038 include a $197,580 pilot project for caregiver training, 

$200,000 in federal funds for a respite care program, an increase of $1.5 million in support 

for service for the elderly and disabled, and a report on levels of state spending for nursing 

home care as well as home- and community-based support. • 

h ttn-//ul\AJ\AI i nfnri 1m rnm /na\IHC /Li ?n~ 1 7 1 - r:::iir i nn- r~rQr1i \1orc- ~rL c:::t1 1rf\l_ fi nrlc-rh:::iil lonnoc_h o lni nn....Qlrlorh 1- c: t :::n1-Mm o 



J/l,j/LU!I t-armg ror me caregivers : NU s1uay nnas cna11enges 1n ne1ping e1aeny stay at nome 111\lt-Ut<.UIVJ 

85 >ortant steps," Askvig said of the proposals under 

_ -· ·-·-· -· -·-·- · .. .. - · ·- __ v __ ____ Jre. North Dakota has made progress, he added. He 

. mated the proportion of funding for at-home care of the elderly probably now is closer 

to 20 percent than 15 percent from a few years ago. 

But the challenges for taking care of the state's elderly will grow as the population ages, a 

study for lawmakers completed by North Dakota State University Extension pointed out. 

Between 2010 and 2040, the number of adults 85 and older in North Dakota is expected to 

grow by 43 percent, an increase of about 7 ,200 people. By 2025, 18 percent of the state's 

population is estimated to be 65 or older. 

The 62, 100 caregivers in North Dakota provide an estimated $860 million in 

uncompensated care, according to a study by AARP. The authors of the NDSU Extension 

study said those figures underscore the importance of supporting caregivers. 

The study identified challenges facing caregivers, including: 

• percent provide nursing care, yet half reported receiv!ng no training. 

• 50 percent of caregivers surveyed reported insufficient respite care, adding to their stress 

and burden. 

• Many reported experiencing a financial burden from their caregiving, including having to 

quit working or work fewer hours. 

"There's always a challenge of finding enough money to pay for the institutional caregiving, 

which we need," said Jane Strommen, a gerontology specialist with the Extension Service 

and one of the report's authors'. "The challenge is being able to find enough 'money for the 

entire continuum." 

Although financial support for caregivers lags, "That's actually the most cost-effective way 

to care for the elderly," Strommen said. 

t pecially in rural areas, providing home-based services is very challenging for a number 

of reasons," including workforce shortages and long distances, Strommen said. Even in 
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85 railability of services does not always mean that adequate y Co 

- - . . . - - - - ·. - -· - - -.. -· - . - ' - . -- - .3 id . 

"My biggest hope is the study brings attention to the needs of caregivers," said Heather 

Fuller, an assistant professor of human development and family science at NDSU and 

another author of the legislative study. "The struggles are often pretty silent and pretty 

hidden." 

Another bill before the Legislature, Senate Bill 2215, would establish discharge protocols 

for hospitals to ensure that caregivers have opportunities for instruction and training in 

providing aftercare. 

Mike and Marilyn Worner, a retired couple in Mayville, are among the supporters for 

specifying discharge plans. 

Last year, after Mike Worner came home from major shoulder surgery, Marilyn had 

conflicting instructions from the physician and nurses, and was confused about how to 

properly change her husband's bandages. 

"I had no idea what to do," Marilyn Worner said. Luckily, a neighbor who was a retired 

nurse was able to help. 

"We have no grievance against hospitals," Mike Worner said, adding his surgery turned 

out well. "In my opinion, we have a void in the laws." 

• 

• 

Patricia Muldoon, who is 70 and relies on Social Security, uses a walker because of her 

back injuries. She once had a home aide who came in to clean her apartment and do her 

laundry, out that service was eliminated in bud£Jet cuts' several years ago. 

Her husband had suffered from polio as a child, which left his right side largely paralyzed. 

He worked despite his disability; first in a factory, then at a highway weigh station and 

finally as a greeter at a bingo hall. 

But in his later years, he was stricken with post-polio and his health deteriorated. He fell . 

frequently and developed dementia, increasing the burden of care and the toll on 
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85 er bad back. 

l ope they pass this caregiver act," she said, referring to pending legislation. "I want 

• er people to get that help that I didn't get. I hope something gets done, because peoi:;>le 

need help." 

Explore related topics: .__N_E_w_ s _ _,11 NORTH DAKOTA LEGISLATURE I I ELDERLY I I CAREGIVERS 

.__N_u_R_ s _1N_G_H_ o_M_E_s _ __,I I NORTH DAKOTA 

• 

• 

Patrick Springer 
Patrick Springerfirstjoined the reporting staff of The Forum in 1985. He can be reached by calling 701-
241-5522. Have a comment to share about a story? Letters to the editor should include author's name, 
address and phone number. Generally, letters should be no longer than 250 words. All letters are 
subject to ed iting . Send to letters@forumcomm.com 

pspringer@forumcomm.com 
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In North Dakota, more than 62,000 family 
caregivers help parents, spouses, children 
with disabilities and other loved ones live 
independently at home. 
They provide a wide range of services for 

their loved ones, including bathing, dress­

ing, transportation, grocery shopping, meal 

preparation, housework, and managing 

finances. They often serve as care coordi­

nators, communicating with hea lth profes­

sionals and accompanying their loved ones 

to medical app o intments. Family caregivers 

provide emotional support, too. 

Caregiving, once one of the most person­

al and p rivate family matters, is now b ecom­

ing a very public issue. Today caregiving 

for an o lder relative affects rea l people in 

North Dakota from all walks of life from 

women, men, farmers and business lead­

ers, t o t eachers, laborers, and lawyers plus 

many more. 

The vo ices of North Dakota fam ily ca re­

g ivers matter, and we at AARP are commit-

Josh Askvig 

AARP North Dakota 

State Director 

ted t o sharing them for all t o hear. W hen 

we set out to gather the voices of N orth 

Dakota family ca regivers, we had no idea 

what we wou ld uncover. Our goa l in creat­

ing this publication was to bring together 

North Dakota ca regiver facts, data about 

caregivers, and most importantly stories 

and experiences of N orth Dakota careg iv­

ers presented "in their own words" style. 

Finally, the last few pages of th is booklet 

contain recommendations to improve fami ­

ly caregiver supports in N orth Dakota. They 

have been evaluated by No rth Dakot a State 

University Extension and the Interim Human 

Services Committee. We fully support these 

recommendations and encourage t he 

Governor, Legis lature, businesses, and local 

communities to implement them. 

Mike Chaussee 

AARP North Dakota 

Associate State Director, Advocacy 



WHO ARE NORTH DAKOTA FAMILY CAREGIVERS? 
Across North Dakota, family caregivers give their hearts every day, 
helping their parents, spouses, and other loved ones stay at home. 

t t 
62,100 

family caregivers 
Provide 58 million hours 
of unpaid care anually 

Estimated at $860 million 
in unpaid care annually 

Aid with 
household chores 

Provide 
transportation 
to appointments 

Use their own money 
to help provide care 

Oversee 
medication 

Cares for 
an older 
loved one 

Source: Valuing the Invaluable 2015 Update: Undeniable Progress, but Big Gaps Remain (PPI) 

Change their 
work schedules 

Manage 
medical tasks 

Help manage 
finances 

Works full 
or part-time 

Help with 
shopping 
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HOSPITAL TRANSITIONS: 
When a patient moves from a hospital setting to 
either home or another care facility. 

Despite the vast importance of fami ly care­

givers in the individual's day-to-day care, 

many caregivers find that they are often left 

out of discussions involving a patient's care 

while in the hospital and, upon the patient's 

discharge, receive little to no instruction on 

the tasks they are expected to perform . The 

federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 

Services (CMS) estimates that $17 billion in 

Medicare funds is spent each year on un-

necessary hospital readmissions. Addition­

ally, hospitals desire to avo id the imposition 

of new readmission pena lties under the 

federa l Patient Protect ion and Affordable 

Care Act (ACA). 

The follow ing testimonials are just some 

of the things that the family caregivers of 

North Dakota are saying about the impor­

tance of hospital transitions. 

"Caregivers need better training from professionals before send­
ing patients home from (the) hospital ." 

-Carol, Bismarck 

"(Legislators) should know the difficulty we have in hospital situ­

ations to get info about parent's condition and prognosis even 

with "release info" forms. Many caregivers are surprised to learn 

that so many additional costs are involved in patient care; so 
"awareness" should be in media, nursing home pamphlets, etc." 

-Terry, Bismarck 

5 
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HOSPITAL TRANSITIONS 

"Though I did receive directions for my "nursing tasks, ff it was a 

problem because I received conflicting instructions from several 

persons before we exited the hospital. I believe that careful, con­
sistent, oral, and written directions would have been of great as­

sistance to me. Also, since my largest problem was wound care, 

if materials were provided for me, or if I were even told where to 

get them, I would have been better able to care for my husband. ff 

-Marilyn, Mayville 

"I was the caregiver for my son while he fought cancer and lost 

the battle ... There were times when I needed more discussion 

about his care. I didn't rea lize that the morphine he was taking 
would cause some memory loss and confusion. ff 

-Vel Rae, Fargo 

"Doctors need to be more aware of what wi 11 happen to patients 
after they leave the hospital. Will the patient's needs for nutri­

tion, exercise, socialization, and medical appointments be met? 

Older people need someone caring and responsible who knows 

the situation and is willing to do whatever needs to be done to 

optimize the older person's quality of life ... Cooperation among 

medical professionals and family members is the key to suc­

cess, the key to keeping older people in their homes, happy and 

healthy and enjoying life as much as possib le. " 

-Janet, Bismarck 
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WORKPLACE FLEXIBILITY: 
Workplace policies that allow family caregivers to 
successfully balance their career and caregiving 
duties. 

Workp lace fl exibil ity will help to support 

fami ly ca regivers who work full -time while 

p roviding ca re for their loved ones. 

Today, many No rth Dakota workers have 

no family leave, o r paid or unpaid sick leave 

th rough their employers. A nd, each day, 

working fam ily caregivers may face the 

loss of pay o r the loss of the ir jobs. Making 

expanded leave available for family caregiv­

ers w il l help them manage their caregiving 

responsibil ities w ithout having t o choose 

between their jobs and thei r loved ones. 

Consider that as the population con­

t inues t o age, more and more adu lts are 

find ing themselves in caregiving situa­

tions. Roughly 20 percent of t he American 

workforce serves as unpaid caregivers. This 

number is expected to grow as individuals 

work longer and begin caring for spous-

es or other fami ly members. So even at a 

small workp lace, chances are a couple of 

people are fam ily caregivers. 74% of fami ly 

ca regivers have worked at a paying job at 

some point during t heir caregiving experi­

ence and 61 % are currently employed. So 

when we talk about "working caregivers," 

or caregivers who are employed outside the 

home, we're not ta lking about some subset. 

We're talking about the majority of family 

caregivers. In a recent national survey, one 

in five retirees left the workforce earlier than 

p lanned because of having to care for an ill 
spouse or other fami ly member. The aver­

age length of caregiving is 4.3 years. 

A recent Interim Human Services Com­

m ittee study on family caregivers found that 

92% of family caregivers reported having 

a poor work/life balance as a caregiving 

challenge. In that same survey, 65% of 

family caregivers reported unsupportive 

workplace policies as a challenge. 

The following testimonials are just some 

of the things that t he caregivers of North 

Dakot a are saying about the import ance of 

workplace flexib il ity. 

9 
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WORKPLACE FLEXIBILITY 

"My job has been flexible but my time away requires me to make 

time up or not get paid . I also help take care of my granddaugh­
ter due to my daughter being a nurse. I don't seem to find time 

to take care of my own needs." 

-Sherry, Bismarck 

"I work full-time and appreciate the flexibility at my job to be able 

to use sick leave to be at doctor's appointments, etc. I wish that 

all working caregivers had this option." 

-Merry, Granville 

"I care for my 90-year-old aunt Margaret. She is in assisted liv­

ing so gets personal care and meals covered. My husband and I 

assist her to medical appointments, financial paperwork, shop­

ping, and any other tasks that may come up that assisted living 

cannot provide. We work full-time and it is a challenge to bal ­

ance all her needs. I enjoy helping her and being there for her. I 

often wonder if she had not been able to afford expensive costs 

of assisted living, where would she be?" 

-Katie, Bismarck 

I 
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RESPITE CARE: 
Temporary relief to family caregivers from their 
caregiving duties. 

Respite care helps to support fami ly care­

givers, many who are on ca ll 24 hours a day, 

seven days a week, by giving them a hard­

earned, we ll -deserved break - all owing 

them to recharge and continue the essen­

tial role they serve in helping their loved 

ones live safe ly at home. Fami ly caregivers 

often put aside their own needs - skipp ing 

doctors' appointments, deve loping poor 

eating habits, and not getting enough 

sleep. 

Family caregivers need some re li ef. Na­

tional, state, and local surveys have shown 

respite care to be the most frequently 

requested service from family caregivers. 

Caregivers commonly experience emo­

tional strain and mental health problems, 

especially depression. Women are more 

likely to have experienced stress and worry 

than men. Similarly, women were less li ke ly 

to feel as if they had enough time and fee l 

well-rested than men. 

Th e fo ll owing testimonials are just some 

of the things that the caregivers of North 

Dakota are saying about the importance of 

resp ite care . 

"The most rewarding part of my 24/7 caregiving job is knowing 

my husband can stay with me in our home and can be well taken 

care of. No one knows the obstacles facing handicapped people 

until they are involved in the care of someone. I could write a 
book on things that could improve his life and mine . We would 

be willing to help anyone who would like to visit with us about 
this. I am glad I can care for my husband. It would be nice to 

have a little more time for myself without worrying about him." 

-Donna, Velva 

13 
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RESPITE CARE 

"I lost my dad four months ago, and my mom doesn't have much 

time left. I cherish the time I have. It is very difficult because I 

work FT (full-time) and PT (part-time) and I take care of my grand­

daughter two nights a week." 

-Mary, Bismarck 

"I'm solo caregiving 24/7, it's a full-time job. I haven't had a break 

now for about 15 years." 

-Larry, Carson 

"Forty-eight years ago when I promised my husband I would 

'have and hold' him 'in sickness and health,' I had no idea that 

his sickness wou ld destroy my health. Five years ago he was 
diagnosed with dementia that was so limiting that someone has 

to watch over him 24/7 ... A little more help from North Dakota 

would have made such a difference in our lives." 

-Pat, West Fargo 
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CONCLUSION: 
AARP North Dakota believes the words of family 

caregivers help tell the story. 

These testimonia ls combined with the resea rch done by t he North Dakot a State University 

Extension entitled the North Dakota Family Caregiver Supports and Services Study show 

the need to make improvements t o fam ily ca reg iver supports in N orth Dakota. 

A couple of highlights from the research: 

> Roughly 50% of our state's fami ly careg ivers performing medical or nursing tasks do not 

get the appropriate instruction or training t o perform these tasks. 

> North Dakota fam ily careg ivers strugg le to find assistance to get the breaks (respite 

care) they need t o alleviate burn-out . 

> Family caregivers in North Dakota are unaware of the services and supports ava ilable 

for their loved one or themselves. 

> Even when they learn about the services, navigating the comp lex web of supports, 

programs, and information is confusing. Even the researchers with advanced education 

said they found it difficu lt to navigate t he existing information sites and materials. 

> W orking North Dakota fami ly caregivers struggle to find an appropriate work and life 

balance. 

*Full report can be found at: https://www.ag.ndsu.edu/agingl documents!nd-family-caregiver-supports-and-services-study. 



RECOMMENDATIONS 
to Support Family Caregivers. 
The report outlines five categories of recommendations to improve family caregiver sup­

ports in North Dakota. 

1. Create programs and policies to foster an increase in the t ra ining and education of 

both informal and professional caregivers. (This recommendation includes t he need to 

provide in-person instruction about medical/nursing tasks that the caregiver will need to 

provide at home.) 

2 . Increase access to resp ite ca re across the state. 

3 . Improve outreach (i.e. marketing) and resources (i.e. technology) to help family caregiv­

ers find, connect to, and navigate available services. 

4. Close the gaps in caregiver support services in rural areas. 

5. Improve avenues for susta inable funding for family caregivers and programs that sup­

port them. 

These recommendations speak to the issues outlined above. We look forward to working to 

pass legislation and implement policies that improve the lives of family caregivers and their 

loved ones in No rth Dakota. 
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Testimony from Ellen Schafer 

SB 2215 

House Human Services Committee 

March 13, 2017 

Chairman Weisz and Committee Members, 

I am Ellen Schafer, a volunteer for AARP North Dakota . I am here on behalf of Senate Bill 2215 . I am a 

retired nurse as of this past spring and have done both hospital and home health nursing. I can testify 

that, yes, hospitals may already have discharge plans in place, but I need more than two hands to 

account for the number of times those plans have failed . Most often I noticed discharge medications 

were not correct so the burden fell on me and other home health nurses to reconcile the medical 

mistakes. We'd have to contact doctors to make sure they were taking the correct medications and the 

correct amounts. 

I want to provide an example of that. It recently happened in my own family. A sixth grade relative of 

mine was hospitalized in Jamestown with a blood sugar reading of 378. She was transferred to a Fargo 

hospital where she was diagnosed with diabetes and a severe kidney infection . She also was running a 

temperature of 103 degrees. After almost a week in the hospital she returned home with her 

grandmother who was taking care of her as her mom had died this past September. When they left the 

hospital her grandmother believed she was to give 20 units of medication Lantus, but she noticed the 

paperwork read two units. Confused, and wondering why her granddaughter's blood sugar was again in 

the 300's, she contacted the doctor and discovered the paperwork was wrong. 

Those opposed to this bill will say they have discharge plans in place. I am here to say, while that might 

be true, there is still plenty of room for error. If the policies are so good, how does this happen? We 

need better discharge policies and we need caregivers to be contacted and provided direction. SB 2215 

wi ll ensure that both the patient and caregiver receive the appropriate discharge instructions that they 

will be required to do once the patient returns home from the hospital. 

Thank you . 

-- I 



North Dakota f 
Hospital Association IJ Est. 1934 

Testimony: 2017 SB 2215 

Vision 
The North Dakota Hospital Association 

will take an active leadership role in major 
Healthcare issues. 

Mission 
The North Dakota Hospital Association 

exists to advance the health status of persons 
served by the membership. 

House Human Services Committee 

Representative Robin Weisz, Chairman 

March 13, 2017 

Good morning Chairman Weisz and Members of the House Human Services Committee. I am 

Jerry E. Jurena, President of the North Dakota Hospital Association. I am here to testify 

regarding 2017 Senate Bill 2215 and ask that you give this bill a Do Not Pass recommendation . 

We appreciate the intent of the bill ; however, hospitals are already highly regulated regarding 

discharge procedures. Hospitals are required to follow federal and state mandated discharge 

procedures in order to be licensed and participate in Medicare and Medicaid. Accreditation 

standards, i.e. The Joint Commission , also dictate discharge procedures. I am not aware of any 

findings, either at the federal level or by accrediting bodies such as The Joint Commission, that 

North Dakota hospitals are not following these already well-established discharge policies and 

procedures. 

Hospitals have been addressing these rules and regulations every day effectively without the 

need for a state law to reiterate what is mandated by these federal and state licensing, 

accreditation , and participation requirements. 

This bill would place additional requirements on hospitals that are unnecessary and could create 

additional questions and potential liability. It mandates hospitals to have written discharge 

policies which are already required; that hospitals must document an uncompensated caregiver 

designated by the patient to be placed in the patient's record, and that the hospital provide the 

PO Box 7340 Bismarck, NO 58507-7340 Phone 701 224-9732 Fax 701 224-9529 
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patient and uncompensated caregiver "instruction and training" for the patient's aftercare before 

the patient may be discharged, again, which is already required. 

This bill creates expense by requiring additional documentation of care to be provided by the 

uncompensated caregiver in a non-hospital setting after discharge. This additional 

documentation will likely require additional time and expense for hospitals. Hospitals already 

have a shortage of professional staff and this bill is requiring additional work with no additional 

funds to accomplish the additional documentation, thus creating an unfunded mandate imposed 

on the hospitals. 

This bill could create a delay in discharging patients because the required documentation of the 

notification and education of the caregiver. What if the caregiver isn't responsive to the 

discharge notification? What if the caregiver must travel for an extended period in order to get to 

the hospital? What if the caregiver isn't available when the appropriate hospital staff is? 

How is a hospital to proceed if the caregiver is not responding in a timely manner? Should it 

discharge the patient anyway and not fulfill its duty to notify and train the caregiver? Or should it 

delay the discharge? This puts hospitals in a no-win situation. Again, hospitals have been 

mandated to have discharge planning processes in place for some time and I am not aware of 

any citations either at the federal level or state level that says they are not providing a discharge 

plan to the patient. 

The bill also creates a potential violation of the patient's privacy rights because it requires the 

hospital to give sensitive medical information to the uncompensated caregiver. Unless the 

patient has signed a HIPAA compliant authorization - a federal requirement to release 

information - the hospital may be disclosing protected health information in violation of state and 

federal laws. Hospitals will now have to ensure that every patient has signed an appropriate 

authorization for release of information before it may fulfill its duties under this bill. 

The bill also potentially creates additional liability for the hospitals. Hospitals have no control of 

the care that would be provided by the uncompensated caregiver to the patient after discharge. 

The hospital, however, is required to provide and document the aftercare instructions and 

training to the uncompensated caregiver. What if the uncompensated caregiver misunderstands 

or forgets the instructions? What if the care is performed poorly and harms the patient? Is the 
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hospital responsible for failing to ensure the uncompensated caregiver sufficiently understood 

the discharge plan? Although the bill contains a vague immunity from liability provision, even if it 

is enforceable, hospitals will still undoubtedly be sued and will incur costs in defending 

themselves. In addition to civil liability, it is unclear how a violation of this law might affect 

a hospital's reimbursement, licensing, or accreditation. There is no guidance regarding 

how non-compliance would impact a hospital. 

An identical bill was introduced (2017 HB 1039), which was amended to simply provide that 

when discharging patients, hospitals must adhere to the requirements established by the federal 

government in the Medicare and Medicaid Conditions of Participation. Hospitals want to ensure 

proper care of patients after discharge and avoid unnecessary readmissions and the hospitals 

already work with referring facilities and families on the coordination of care upon discharge. 

These are issues hospitals have been addressing every day effectively under well-established 

federal, state, and accreditation requirements. We prefer this approach over creating an 

unnecessary state law that is going to create additional cost, uncertainty, and potential liability 

while not providing any real benefit for patients. 

We oppose this bill and ask that you give this it a Do Not Pass recommendation. 

I would be happy to try to answer any questions you may have. Thank you. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jerry E. Jurena, President 

North Dakota Hospital Association 
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House Human Services Committee 
Rep. Robin Weisz, Chair 

March 13, 2017 

Chairman Weisz, and members of the House Human Services Committee, my name is Chris 

Meeker, M.D. I am a board-certified emergency medicine physician and chief medical officer at 

Sanford Health in Bismarck. Sanford Health is the largest, rural, not-for-profit health care system 

in the nation with more than 26,000 employees in 126 communities across nine states. Our 

footprint includes 39 hospitals, 225 clinics and 1,360 physicians in 81 specialty areas of medicine. 

I appreciate this opportunity to speak to you briefly about Senate Bill 2215 regarding 

aftercare and hospital discharge policies. During the 64th Legislative session HB 1279 was 

considered and defeated, I believe because it was considered redundant and duplicative to 

standards and practices already being followed by hospitals. During the interim, the Human 

Services Interim Committee continued to consider a number of issues related to caregiving, 

including hospital discharge policy. We constructively participated in those efforts, and indeed 

the bill you have before you is clearly less onerous than what had been previously debated. 

Despite the language improvements, however, it is our position that this bill is still unnecessary 

and duplicative. Any hospital that wishes to participate in the federal Medicare program is 

required to have written discharge policies. That means every hospital in North Dakota. The 

standards and processes around Discharge Planning and Patient Rights are thorough and 

detailed. 

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) through their Conditions of 

Participation (CoP) establish rules around Discharge Planning, as does the Joint Commission's 

Standards for Accreditation (TJC). 

CMS regulations for Hospital Discharge Planning include: 

Patients have a written discharge plan developed. 

Patients have specific discharge instructions provided in writing . 

Patient goals and preferences for discharge are taken into account. 

Patient caregivers are active partners in the discharge plan. 



• 
Hospitals consider the availability and capability of the caregiver to provide home care . 

Discharge planning begins within 24 hours of admission . 

Discharge planning process is completed prior to discharge. 

Discharge instructions are presented in a way that the patient and caregiver can 
understand. 

All of these requirements must be documented in the patient medical record. 

Beyond the CMS and Joint Commission, the North Dakota Department of Health also provides 

rules for hospital licensing. (Chapter 33-07-01.1): "Every patient must receive effective discharge 

planning consistent with identified Patient and family needs from the hospital. Discharge planning 

must be initiated in a timely manner. Patients, along with necessary medical information, must be 

transferred or referred to appropriate facilities, agencies, or outpatient services, as needed, for 

follow-up or ancillary care." 

The Dept. of Health also provides as a resource a Survey Protocol of Regulations and 

Interpretive Guidelines for Hospitals which reflect again the rules established by CMS. 

We are appreciative of efforts to quantify and resolve issues related to caregiving, both inside 

and outside the hospital setting. We recognize that with the thousands of patients cared for in 

• North Dakota everyday problems can and do occur. Despite all our efforts human efforts, 

mistakes happen. That's why we have rules and regulations to guide the work performed in our 

facilities. 

• 

The problem is, Mr. Chairman, we already have all these rules in place. We respectfully 

oppose this legislation. It' s not needed, and, despite language to the contrary, has potential to 

slow the discharge process, resulting in prolonged emergency department holding, surgical 

delays, and the inability to accept transfers from critical access hospitals because of the lack of 

any empty inpatient beds. 

I'm happy to try and answer any questions. Thank you. 

Chris Meeker, M.D. 
Chief Medical Officer 
Sanford Health Bismarck 
701-323-2601 
Chris.Meeker@Sanfordhealth .org 
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March 20, 2017 

Rep. Robin Weisz, House Human Services Committee 

Chairman Weisz, 
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Thank you for the opportunity to share information regarding Sanford Health discharge policies. As you 
know, hospital discharge planning is thoroughly regulated by the Centers of Medicare and Medicaid 
(CMS) and Joint Commission Standards (TJC) . Additionally, the N.D. Department of Health's rules for 
hospital licensing specify discharge planning requirements. 

In Dr. Chris Meeker's SB 2215 comments last week, he shared excerpts from the Sanford Health 
Discharge Planning Policy. Because Sanford's hospital policies are proprietary, I may not share the full 
policy but will share verbatim the portions of the policy to which Dr. Meeker referred: 

1. Patient has the right to be active and participate in the development of their discharge plan of care. 

2. Upon admission, the nurse assesses the patient for the follow and documents on the Admission 

Navigator: 

a. Prior living situation 

b. Risk factors related to past medical history 

c. Prior level of functioning 

d. Home and family 

e. Preference for religion 

f. Nutrition 

g. Concerns or fears related to present admission 

h. Abuse and/or neglect 

i. Financial concerns 

j. Advance Directive 

k. High Risk Assessment 

3. The Case Manager/Social Worker reviews the patient's medical record and, if indicated, interviews 

the patient and/or family to assess: 

Our Mission : 
Dedicated to the work of 

health and healing 



a. Patient's prior living situation 

b. Availability of caregivers 

c. Prior use of adaptive equipment 

d. Insurance source 

e. Current services or anticipated discharge services needed I Patient goals for discharge 

4. The Case Manager/Social Worker determines if further discharge planning needs are present and 

need to be addressed before discharge. The patient's needs for significant personal care and nursing 

care equipment as well as post-hospital services and their availability are identified. All of these needs 

are discussed with the patient and/or family. 

Each hospital's internal policies are likely different, but all adhere to the CMS, TJC and NDDoH 

requirements and all have the same purpose: to establish a consistent approach to safe, efficient 

discharge planning for all hospitalized patients. 

In the SB 2215 public hearing, Mr. Josh Askvig was asked why the bill passed without opposition in 

Minnesota. He stated he did not have insight to answer the question . Dr. Meeker asked me to relay this: 

Minnesota has capacity in their referral centers that North Dakota often does not. North Dakota 

hospitals are often full. 

Despite language to the contrary, this bill has potential to slow the discharge process, resulting in 

prolonged emergency department holding, surgical delays, and the inability to accept transfers from 

critical access hospitals because of the lack of any empty inpatient beds. 

Please do let me know if you have questions or would like more information. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Marnie Walth 
Strategic Planning and Public Policy 
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I Revised: DEPARTMENT: Patient Care- Nursing Service 

PURPOSE: 

J 
/S-

To ensure a plan is in place to meet the patient's continuing healthcare needs post-hospitalization . 

DEFINITION: 
• Discharge Planning - A process and service whereby patient needs are identified and 

evaluated. Assistance is given in preparing the patient to move from one level of care to 
another. 

POLICY: 
• Towner County Medical Center shall provide Discharge Planning for all patients. The 

discharge planning process shall be initiated at the time of admission. 
• Multiple disciplines may be involved in the discharge planning process, including, but not 

limited to: 
• Medical Staff 
• Nursing Staff 
• Rehabilitation Services Staff 
• Social Service 
• Pharmacy 

• Written discharge instructions shall be given to the patienUfamily in a manner that the 
patienUfamily can understand. 

PROCEDURE: 
• The initial assessmenUevaluation for discharge planning needs shall be conducted Cl uring 

the nursing admission assessment. 
• Availability and location of needed services are assessed . 
• Referrals are made to needed services. 
• The patient or family member will be made aware of services and how contact can be 

made. 
• Patient education is documented in the medical record. 

TOWNER COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER 




